
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR
MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL
OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO
ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 2, 2016 - 10:00 A.M.
R E V I S E D 

 

             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Recognition of Gila County employees who have been
employed for 5, 10, 15, 20, 25, 30, 35 and 40 years as of
2015.  (Erica Raymond)

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to appoint two (2) of the
nominated qualified electors who meet the requirements of
the Arizona Revised Statutes and Gila County policy to fill
the two (2) vacancies on the Personnel Commission for
four-year terms commencing January 1, 2016, and expiring
December 31, 2019.  (Don McDaniel)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an
Intergovernmental Agreement with the Arizona Department
of Economic Security to provide Title IV-D child support
services in Gila County for the award period beginning
October 1, 2015, and ending September 30, 2020.  (Jeff
Dalton) 

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the  



4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of the reappointment of Judge Gary V. Scales as
Judge Pro Tempore for the Superior Court in Gila County
for the period of July 1, 2016, until June 30, 2017.

 

B.   Acknowledgment of James Hinton's resignation from the
East Verde Park Fire District Board of Directors, and the
appointment of Maggie Mean-Evans to fulfill Mr. Hinton's
unexpired term, effective September 23, 2015, through
December 31, 2016.

 

C.   Approval of the following precinct committeemen
appointments as submitted by the Gila County Republican
Committee: Payson #2 - Jane Bradley Evans and Globe #7 -
Peggy Porter.

 

D.   Approval of Amendment No. 6 to Professional Services
Agreement No. 062813-Medical Examiner Services between
Gila County and Mark A. Fischione, M.D., PLC to extend
the term of the contract from January 7, 2016, to July 6,
2016, and to increase the original contract amount from
$30,000 to $65,000 for the new contract term.

 

E.   Acknowledgment of the November 2015 monthly activity
report submitted by the Recorder's Office.

 

F.   Acknowledgment of the December 2015 monthly activity
report submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

 

G.   Approval of the January 5, 2016, and January 19, 2016,
Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

 



H.   Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the
weeks of January 5, 2016, January 12, 2016, January 19,
2016, and January 26, 2016. 

 

I.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have
been approved by the County Manager for the weeks
of December 14, 2015, through December 18, 2015;
December 21, 2015, through December 25, 2015;
and, December 28, 2015, through January 01, 2016.

 

J.   Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the
weeks of January 4-10, 2016; January 11-17, 2016; and
January 18-24, 2016.

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may
respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the
Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and
decision at a future date.

 

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Manager may present a brief summary of
current events.  No action may be taken on information
presented.

 

 

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (The Board of Supervisors
may vote to go into executive session on one or all of
the items listed in this section.  No action will be taken
by the Board while in executive session.)

 

 



A.   Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive
session pursuant to A.R.S. §  38-431.03(A)(3) and
38-431.03(A)(4) regarding a Request for Waiver of Service
for Continental Energy, LLC v. Gila County,
TX2015-000969, and a request to allow the Attorney
General's Office to represent Gila County in this matter. 
After the Regular Meeting has been reconvened, move to
direct the County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in
the executive session regarding this agenda item.   (Jeff
Dalton)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive
session pursuant to A.R.S. §  38-431.03(A)(3) and
38-431.03(A)(4) regarding a Request for Waiver of Service
for Continental Energy, LLC v. Gila County,
TX2015-000950, and a request to allow the Attorney
General's Office to represent Gila County in this matter.  
After the Regular Meeting has been reconvened, move to
direct the County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in
the executive session regarding this agenda item.  (Jeff
Dalton)

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive
session pursuant to A.R.S. §  38-431.03(A)(3) and
38-431.03(A)(4) regarding a request to allow the Attorney
General's Office to represent Gila County for Constellation
Solar Arizona, LLC v. Gila County, TX 2015-000112.  After
the Regular Meeting has been reconvened, move to direct
the County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in the
executive session regarding this agenda item.  (Jeff Dalton)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive
session pursuant to A.R.S. §  38-431.03(A)(3) and
38-431.03(A)(4) regarding a request to allow the Attorney
General's Office to represent Gila County for Sunrun Inc. v.
Gila County, TX 2015-000450.  After the Regular Meeting
has been reconvened, move to direct the County Attorney's
Office to proceed as directed in the executive session
regarding this agenda item.  (Jeff Dalton)



 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive
session pursuant to A.R.S. §  38-431.03(A)(3) and
38-431.03(A)(4) regarding a request to allow the Attorney
General's Office to represent Gila County for Solarcity
Corporation v. Gila County, TX 2015-000240.  After the
Regular Meeting has been reconvened, move to direct the
County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in the
executive session regarding this agenda item.  (Jeff Dalton)

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive
session pursuant to A.R.S. §  38-431.03(A)(3) and
38-431.03(A)(4) regarding a proposed Settlement Agreement
for Carson Construction Inc. v. Gila County, CV
201500006, regarding the Pine Creek Canyon Road
Construction Project.  After the Regular Meeting has been
reconvened, move to direct the County Attorney's Office to
proceed as directed in the executive session regarding this
agenda item.  (Jeff Dalton)

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.
THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)
THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   
ARF-3508     Presentation      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  
Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr., Human

Resources Department
Department: Human Resources Department

Information
Request/Subject
2015 Gila County Employee Service Awards Presentation

Background Information
n/a

Evaluation
n/a

Conclusion
n/a

Recommendation
n/a

Suggested Motion
Recognition of Gila County employees who have been employed for 5, 10,
15, 20, 25, 30, 35 and 40 years as of 2015.  (Erica Raymond)

Attachments
2015 Gila County Service Awards



2015	Gila	County	Service	Awards	
5	Years	 10	Years 15 Years 20	Years 25	Years

Andrade,	Zackery		 Boyer,	Jay		 Carlson,	William		 Baltz,	Karen		 Baxley,	Travis		
Bryant,	Laura		 Bradway,	Deborah		 DalMolin	Giberti,	

Bianca		
Cline,	Brent	 Bondurant,	Denice		

Cottrell,	Patrick		 Buzan,	Scott		 Gonzales,	Ruben		III	 Cronk,	Rodney		 Johnson,	Michael		
Cruz,	Jessica		 Campbell,	Shawn		 Heppler,	Cheri		 Fickel,	Debbie		 Scott,	Julie		
Davies,	Beth		 Cruz,	Anna		 Lavin,	Fred		 Grice,	Sherry		 Yeoman,	Emma	
Dooly,	Larry		 Fagan,	Carol		 Leon,	Mary		 Prater,	Noreen		 30	Years	
Duarte,	Ruben		 Hill,	Julie		 Lopez,	Ruth	M	 Rogers,	David		 Garcia,	Ramon		
Flake,	Jordan		 Keegan,	Michelle		 Lord	Joerns,	Kathleen	 Sanchez,	Anna		 Pratt,	Bertina	
Friestad,	Jeremy		 Levario,	Catherine		 Modglin,	Lisa		 Yanez,	Karen		 Puhara,	Donna	
Gore,	Cate		 Martin,	Tommie		 Rasmussen,	Maria		 	 Salcido,	Arthur		
Lemon,	Michael	 Mata,	Adrian		 Reece,	Kaycee		 35	Years	
McCoy,	Carl	 Nenninger,	Gerald		 Ybarra,	Michael		 Gonzales,	Martha		
McDaniel,	Don	Jr	 O'Dell,	Linda		 	 40	Years	
Rhyne,	Kendall		 Perez,	Johnnie		 Casillas,	Ruben		
Scales,	Gary	 Perez,	Stephanie		
Shapiro,	Howard	 Seibert,	Mathilde		
Toumberlin,	Danielle	 Tarango,	Tiffiney		
Wilckens,	Lisa		 Wellington,	Cheryl		
Williams,	Charlotte		 Williams,	Stevan		
		



   
ARF-3583     Regular Agenda Item      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  
Submitted By: Don McDaniel

Jr., County
Manager,
County Manager

Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Appoint two members to the five member Personnel Commission

Background Information
At the Board of Supervisors' January 5, 2016 Regular Meeting, Supervisor
Marcanti asked a question about how and when the vacancies on the
Personnel Commission were going to be filled. After reviewing the current
list of members (attached), it was noted that the terms of members Ken
Volz and Lori Andrade expired December 31, 2015.

Four (4) candidates have been nominated by Board members and
reviewed by the Human Resources Department for consideration for
appointment.

Evaluation
There are no term limits for the Personnel Commission, so the existing
members may be re-appointed or replaced. These members are not
appointed by Supervisorial District, but rather from the County as a
whole as qualified electors. However, Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S.)
§11-353 requires that no more than three (3) members shall be from the
same political party. The Commission is currently made up of one (1)
Republican, two (2) Democrats, and two (2) Independents. Mr. Volz is one
of the Democrats and Ms. Andrade is one of the Independents.

A further requirement in making the appointments is contained in the
recently adopted Personnel Commission Policy (Policy No. BOS-HRS-625).
The Policy requires that at least one (1) member shall have prior work
experience in the law enforcement or probation field.  This provision is
included in the Policy because a large percentage of County employees are
in the Sheriff's Office. Neither one of the incumbents has prior work
experience in the law enforcement or probation field.



experience in the law enforcement or probation field.

The four (4) nominations are: 1) Ken Volz (D), no law enforcement; 2) Lori
Andrade (I), no law enforcement; 3) Kevin Nolan (R), law enforcement;
and, 4) Jaime Escobedo (D), law enforcement.

Conclusion
The Board will want to be mindful of the two (2) requirements of "no more
than three (3) from the same political party" and at least "one
representative has prior work experience in the law enforcement or
probation field," as it makes the appointments to fill the two (2) vacancies.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors appoint two (2) of the
nominated candidates who meet the requirements of A.R.S. §11-353 and
Gila County Policy No. BOS-HRS-625 to fill the two (2) vacancies on the
Personnel Commission for four-year terms commencing January 1, 2016,
and expiring December 31, 2019.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to appoint two (2) of the nominated
qualified electors who meet the requirements of the Arizona Revised
Statutes and Gila County policy to fill the two (2) vacancies on the
Personnel Commission for four-year terms commencing January 1, 2016,
and expiring December 31, 2019.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
GC Personnel Commission as of 2-2-16
Policy No. BOS-HRS-625 Personnel Commission
ARS §11-353



 

 

GILA COUNTY PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

(As of 2/2/16) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Jonathan Barber  B-Republican C (02/18/14)  7 years, 3 months 01/01/14-12/31/16 
 

01/01/14-12/31/16 

Ken Volz  
(Chairman as of 11/18/13) 

B-Democrat C (11/15/11) 4 years 01/01/12-12/31/15 01/01/12-12/31/15 
EXPIRED TERM 

Tom Moody B-Independent C (02/18/14) 4 years, 9 months 01/01/14-12/31/16 
 

01/01/14-12/31/16 

David Lagunas  B-Democrat C (12/02/14) 
 

1 year, 1 month 01/01/15-12/31/18 01/01/15-12/31/18 

Lori Andrade B-Independent B (09/02/14) 
(Jerry McCreary) 

- 09/02/14-12/31/15 01/01/12-12/31/15 
EXPIRED TERM 

 
1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  On October 22, 1979, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 78-10-8 establishing a Personnel Policy which included establishing a Personnel Commission at 
that same time.   

B. The Personnel Commission was also established in accordance with A.R.S. §11-353 (A) which states, “The commission shall consist of five members, each of whom shall hold office for a 
term of four years and until his successor is appointed and qualified.  Of the members first appointed, two shall serve for a two-year term two for a three-year term and one shall serve a 
four-year term, and such members shall determine by lot the length of their terms.   

C. A.R.S. §11-353 (B) states “Members of the commission shall be selected from among the qualified electors of the county.  No more than three of such members shall be from the same 
political party. 
 

2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 

 

 



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

1 of 3 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625  
 

I. PURPOSE:  

 

The purpose of this policy is to establish the Gila County Personnel Commission 

(Commission), identify the Commission’s authority, and set forth the situations under which 

eligible employees may appeal employment actions the employee deems to be adverse.  

 

II. APPLICABILITY:   

 

This policy applies to all classified Gila County employees. 

 

III. POLICY: 

It is the policy of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to appoint a Personnel Commission, 

a five-member independent body of private citizens to provide an appeal process to County 

employees who believe they have been involved in an adverse employment action. The 

Commission is responsible for reviewing and understanding the precepts of Gila County 

employment, retention and promotion for all classified employees to ensure it meets the 

standards of the Gila County Merit System. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________    _________________________ 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS    DATE 

  



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

2 of 3 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625  
 

IV. PROCEDURES: 

 

The Board of Supervisors (Board) shall appoint a Personnel Commission to assist in the 

County’s personnel administration system.  

 

The Commission shall consist of five members, each of whom shall hold office for a term of 

four years or until a successor is appointed and qualified. The Commission serves as an 

independent advisory board established to hear appeals from eligible employees about 

specific adverse employment actions.  

 

Members of the Commission are selected from among the qualified electors of the County 

and shall be generally familiar with Human Resources policies and procedures. No more than 

three (3) of such members shall be from the same political party. At least one (1) member 

shall have prior work experience in the law enforcement or probation field. 

 

Each member shall hold office for a term of four (4) years or until his successor is appointed 

and qualified. Of the members first appointed, two (2) shall serve for a two (2) year term, two 

(2) for a three (3) year term, and one shall serve a four (4) year term, and such members shall 

determine, by lot, the length of their terms. Appointment to fill a vacancy caused by other 

than expiration of term shall be for the unexpired portion of the term. A member of the 

Commission may be removed by the Board for cause. Any one of the following shall 

constitute the resignation of a Commissioner and authorize the Board to appoint a new 

member to fill the unexpired term so vacated: 

 

 Absence from three (3) consecutive meetings; 

 Becoming a candidate for any elected public office; or, 

 Accepting any appointive office or employment in County service. 

 

The Commission shall elect one (1) of its members as the Chairperson on an annual basis, 

changing who serves as Chairperson each year. The Chairperson shall also be willing to 

serve on other local boards within the County that are required, by statute, to be represented 

by the “head of the merit system” and which are appointed by the Board of Supervisors. 

Three (3) members shall be present to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. A 

majority of the commission membership shall constitute a majority vote. 

 

The Commission shall become familiar with and perform duties as are necessary to carry out 

the provisions of the Gila County Merit Rules, Human Resources policies, the Arizona 

Revised Statute (A.R.S.) Title 38, et seq., for Public Safety Officers (A.R.S. 38-1101 through 

38-1114), and Adult and Juvenile Probation Officers (A.R.S. 38-1131 through 38-1141), the 

Gila County Sheriff’s Office Policy and Procedure Manual and the Superior Court’s Merit 

Rules and Policies, and other adopted policies of the County. In addition, the Commission 

may assist the Board of Supervisors in the following areas: 

  



Gila County Human Resources 

 

 

 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 

Revised: 10-21-2015 

3 of 3 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625  
 

A. Making recommendations on Human Resources policies with the goal of improving 

understanding, consistent application, and the efficient operation of County government;  

 

B. Making recommendations to the Board and Human Resources Director (Director) of 

problems concerning personnel administration; 

 

C. Making recommendations to assist in the fostering of interest in the best practices of 

institutions of learning and of civic, professional, and employee organizations in order to 

improve personnel standards in the County service; and, 

 

D. Making annual reports, and such special reports as the Commission considers desirable to 

the Board regarding personnel administration in the County service and recommendations for 

improvements. 

 

The Commission shall hold meetings in accordance with the Arizona Open Meeting laws 

A.R.S. §38-431, et seq.  The Commission shall meet at such times and places as shall be 

specified by call of a majority of the Commission or by the Chairperson. 

 

Further: 

 All meetings shall be open to the public;  

 At least five (5) days’ written notice of each meeting shall be given by the 

Director to each member not joining in the call for a meeting; and, 

 Three (3) members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.  

 

All matters to be presented for consideration by the Commission at a regular or special 

meeting shall be placed on the Commission’s agenda without undue delay. The agenda shall 

be electronically mailed to each member of the Commission and shall be posted in 

accordance with A.R.S. §38-431.02, no less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting.  

 

The Director shall provide for the recording of the official actions of the Commission in its 

minutes. The time and place of each meeting of the Commission, the commissioners present, 

all official acts of the Commission and, when requested, a commissioner’s dissent and the 

reasons for the dissent shall be recorded in the minutes. The Director shall cause the minutes 

to be transcribed and presented for approval or amendment at the next meeting. The minutes, 

or a true copy thereof, shall be open to public inspection.  

 





   

ARF-3592     Regular Agenda Item      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  

Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead, County Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2015-2019 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 1, 2015
- September 30,
2019

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the Arizona Department of Economic Security
(ADES) for Title IV-D child support services in Gila County. 

Background Information
Since 1992, Gila County has contracted with ADES to provide Title IV-D child support
services in Gila County through the Office of the Gila County Attorney. The title IV-D
child support program is a federal program that reimburses states for providing child
support services. In Arizona, ADES contracts with Navajo and Gila counties to provide
these services within each of those counties. Program costs are reimbursed by federal
funds on the basis of sixty-six cents for each dollar spent on the program. Additionally,
because the program also helps reimburse the federal government for monies
expended for welfare for needy families (TANF-Temporary Assistance to Needy
Families), the program receives a share of the money it saves in federal welfare (SSRE).
Finally, the program receives federal incentive payments based upon paternity
establishment, support order establishment, collection of current support, arrears
collection, and cost effectiveness. 

Evaluation
Approving this IGA will allow the Child Support Division of the Gila County Attorney’s
Office to continue providing child support services to Gila County residents. Not
approving this IGA would transfer responsibility for providing these services to the
state. This would likely result in Gila County residents not having a local child support
office. Also, given that the state’s scores on incentive measures are lower than Gila
County’s incentive scores, not approving this IGA would likely result in decreased child
support enforcement in Gila County. 

Conclusion
Approving the IGA will allow Gila County to continue to provide superior child support
enforcement services to the people of Gila County. 



Recommendation
The Gila County Attorney recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the IGA
with Arizona Department of Economic Security for the provision of Title IV-D services
in Gila County. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement with the
Arizona Department of Economic Security to provide Title IV-D child support services
in Gila County for the award period beginning October 1, 2015, and ending September
30, 2020.  (Jeff Dalton) 

Attachments
IGA Child Support
Approval as to Form
Comment



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 
This Contract is between the Arizona Department of Economic Security ("ADES/Department") and the 

Gila County Board of Supervisors, Office of the County Attorney ("County Attorney").  

 

 

WHEREAS the Department is duly authorized to execute and administer contracts under A.R.S §41-1954 and, 

 

WHEREAS the Contractor is duly authorized to execute and administer contracts under A.R.S. §11-201 and,  

 
WHEREAS the Department and the Contractor are authorized by A.R.S. §11-952 et seq. to enter into 
agreements for joint or cooperative action to contract for the services specified in this contract.   
 
WHEREAS the County Attorney is authorized by A.R.S. § 25-509 to represent the State in matters involving 
Title IV-D of the "Social Security Act," 88 Stat. 2351 (1975), 42 U.S.C. 651 , as amended (“Title IV-D”) in Gila 
County. 
 
THEREFORE, the Department and the Contractor agree to abide by all the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Contract. 

 ________________________ _ 

BY SIGNING THIS FORM ON BEHALF OF THE CONTRACTOR, THE SIGNATORY CERTIFIES HE/SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO BIND THE CONTRACTOR 

TO THIS CONTRACT. 

 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE ARIZONA 
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC SECURITY: 

 FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE GILA 
COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

 
________________________________ 
Procurement Officer Signature 

  
______________________________ 
Signature 

 
 

Printed Name 

  
______________________________ 
Printed Name 

 
 

Title 

  
______________________________ 
Title 

 
 

Date 

  
______________________________ 
Date 

 
 

ADES Contract Number 

  
 

 
      

IN ACCORDANCE WITH A.R.S. §11-952 THIS CONTRACT HAS BEEN REVIEWED BY THE 

UNDERSIGNED WHO HAVE DETERMINED THAT THIS CONTRACT IS IN APPROPRIATE FORM AND 

WITHIN THE POWERS AND AUTHORITY GRANTED TO EACH RESPECTIVE PUBLIC BODY. 

 
ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL’S OFFICE   

 
 
By: ______________________________________ 
 Assistant Attorney General 

  
 
By: ____________________________________ 
 Public Agency Legal Counsel 

 
 
Date:  ____________________________________ 

  
 
Date:  ________________________________ 

 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 2 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

 
 
1.0 ADES VISION AND MISSION STATEMENTS 
1.1 ADES Vision:  Opportunity, assistance and care for Arizonans in need. 
1.2 ADES Mission: The Arizona Department of Economic Security makes Arizona stronger by 

helping Arizonans reach their potential through temporary assistance for those in need, and 
care for the vulnerable. 

 
2.0 PARTIES    
2.1 This Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) is between the ADES and the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors, Office of the County Attorney. 
 
3.0 TERM OF AGREEMENT 
3.1 The term of this Agreement shall have an effective date of October 1, 2015 and shall end on 

September 30, 2019, unless otherwise agreed upon by both parties in writing. 
3.2 EXTENSION 

This agreement may be extended through a written amendment by mutual agreement of the 
parties. 

3.3 TERMINATION 
3.3.1 This agreement may be terminated by mutual agreement of the parties at any time during the 

term of this agreement. 
3.3.2 Each party shall have the right to terminate this agreement by providing to the other party 

written notice of termination at least ninety (90) days prior to the effective date of said 
termination.   

 
4.0 AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATIONS 
4.1  This Agreement may be amended or modified at any time by mutual agreement. No agent, 

employee or other representative of either party is empowered to alter any of the terms of the 
agreement, unless done in writing and signed by the authorized representative of the 
respective parties. 

4.2 Either party shall give written notice to the other party of any non-material alteration that affects 
the provisions of this Agreement.  Non-material alterations that do not require a written 
amendment are as follows:  

 1.  Change of telephone number; 

 2.  Change in authorized signatory; and/or, 
 3.  Change in the name, address, or email address of the person to whom notices are to be 

sent. 
  
5.0 PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT 
5.1 The purpose of this agreement is to facilitate the use of the County Attorney to establish 

paternity, establish, modify, or enforce child support orders and medical insurance obligations 
in Title IV-D matters and to cooperate with ADES in performing the operational requirements  of 
the Title IV-D State Plan under state and federal law. 

 
6.0 MANNER OF FINANCING 
6.1 Funding for this Agreement comes from an annual grant from the Department of Health and 

Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, Grant No. G1604AZ4004. 
 
7.0 SERVICE DESCRIPTION  
7.1 A service that uses administrative and judicial methods to locate parents, establish paternity, 

establish and modify child support obligations and enforce child/spousal support and the 
provision of medical insurance. 

 
8.0 RESPONSIBILITIES 
8.1 The County Attorney shall: 
8.1.1 Work all Title IV-D cases assigned to the County consistent with federal and state laws and 

applicable state and Department policies and procedures. 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 3 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

8.1.2 Reflect equal treatment of locate, paternity, establishment and enforcement activities between 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and non-TANF cases.   

8.1.3 Represent the State in Title IV-D matters.  Therefore, there is no conflict of interest when the 
County Attorney provides services to a Title IV-D Custodial Person (CP) with multiple Non-
Custodial Parents (NCP) or applicants from the same family unit.    

8.1.3.1 Although attorneys from the County Attorney's office are providing legal services to establish 
paternity and establish, modify or enforce support, such attorneys do not represent the CP, 
NCP, or the child or children in the case, but represent the State of Arizona.     

8.1.4 Be responsible for all court appearances involving any case within their county’s Title IV-D 
caseload and shall attempt to protect the interest of the State.  

8.1.5 Represent, upon request, the State in any hearing for a Title IV-D case that is assigned to a 
different county, but the hearing is scheduled before the court in their county. When there is a 
conflict in court appearances for which the County Attorney cannot obtain coverage, the County 
Attorney shall immediately notify the Attorney General’s Office, Unit Chief, Legal Counsel 
Complex Litigation by telephone in order to assist in arranging coverage for the conflicting court 
appearance.  

8.1.6 Appear in divorce, probate, and other proceedings where necessary to protect the State's 
interest in establishing and enforcing support orders, responding to orders, and/or subpoenas 
for State records.   

8.1.7 Cooperate with the Attorney General’s Office in the handling of bankruptcy cases within the 
County by:  
1) Providing timely notification to the Attorney General’s Office of bankruptcy filings;  
2) Preparing, or obtaining from other jurisdictions, arrears calculations for the Attorney 
General’s Office and providing supporting court orders and documentation for the filing of 
claims; and  
3) Cooperate with the Attorney General’s Office as needed in the handling of bankruptcy cases 
within the County. 
4) Continuing with Paternity, Establishment and Modification actions and ensure that current 
support is paid on cases within the County Attorney’s caseload, even though the obligor has 
filed a bankruptcy petition.  

   
8.2 ACCESS TO ATLAS 
8.2.1 All new County Attorney staff assigned to Title IV-D Child Support cases shall complete ADES 

required forms and ATLAS security training before being assigned “log on” identifiers for 
ATLAS.   

8.2.2 New ATLAS users are required to complete the following forms: 
 1.  J-125, Request for Terminal Access; 
 2.  J-129, Affirmation Statement; 
 3.  CS-169, Conflict of Interest/Confidentiality Statement. 

4.  The above forms are available electronically upon request.  Completed forms shall be  sent 
electronically to ISAADMIN@AZDES.GOV. 

8.2.3 Arizona Tracking Locate Automated System (ATLAS) Responsibilities: The County Attorney 
shall load, maintain, and use the ATLAS system consistent with the Department Policy and 
Procedures, which are on-line in ATLAS or otherwise provided by the Department.  All case 
activity shall be documented on ATLAS. The County Attorney shall track litigation activities 
using the legal processing screens in ATLAS (LETL and CAHL). The County Attorney shall 
notify the ATLAS Help Desk of all system-related problems. 

 
8.3 APPEALS/SPECIAL ACTIONS RESPONSIBILITIES 
8.3.1 In order to further the State’s goal in taking consistent positions before the appellate courts, if 

the County Attorney is of the opinion that a paternity, establishment, enforcement or any other 
order is erroneous and presents a question of law or fact warranting an appeal, the County 
Attorney shall promptly provide the Attorney General’s Child Support Services Section Chief 
Counsel with sufficient case information and documentation to enable the Office of the Attorney 
General to evaluate the case for appeal on behalf of the State.  After consultation with the 
Assistant Director for Child Support Services, the Attorney General’s Office will advise the 
County Attorney of the approval or disapproval of the request to appeal.  In the case of an 
approval, the County Attorney and Attorney General shall agree as to whom will file the Notice 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 4 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

of Appeal, necessary briefs and the timeframes for exchange of documents.  If the request to 
pursue an appeal is denied, the Attorney General’s Office will promptly advise the County 
Attorney of the reasons for the denial.  

8.3.2 The Attorney General’s Office shall be primarily responsible for answering appellate matters in 
the County Attorney’s caseload.  The County Attorney shall notify the Attorney General’s Office 
within two business days of the filing of any appellate matter or special action.  Notice includes 
copies of the Notice of Appeal, Clerk of the Court Index, opening briefs and all relevant portions 
of the case record and lower court record necessary to answer the opening brief or take other 
appropriate action.  The Attorney General’s Office shall also respond to all Judicial Review Act 
matters filed as to cases in the County Attorney’s caseload.  

 
8.4 INDIAN RESERVATION CASES 
8.4.1 The County Attorney shall file the matter in State court if State court jurisdiction may be 

asserted under applicable law.  If there is an agreement with the tribe to permit an attorney for 
the Title IV-D program to appear in tribal court, cases shall be litigated in tribal court if that is 
where jurisdiction properly lies.  

8.4.2 If the Department has an agreement with a tribal government which provides that a tribal 
government entity will perform some or all Title IV-D functions for cases involving its own 
members, the County Attorney shall refer cases covered by such agreement to the appropriate 
tribal entity.  The Department will notify the County Attorney in writing of any such agreement 
and will work to ensure compliance with its terms.  

8.4.3 In the absence of any agreement, those cases referred to the County Attorney in which State 
court jurisdiction cannot be asserted over the non-custodial person because she/he lives and/or 
works on an Indian reservation, shall be prepared and filed in the appropriate reservation tribal 
court or tribunal, if that tribunal will allow the attorney for the State to appear in a representative 
capacity without charging fees for the case.  Preparation of a case to be referred shall be in a 
form acceptable to the tribal court or tribunal.  

 
8.5 SERVICE TASKS OF THE COUNTY ATTORNEY 
8.5.1 ESTABLISHMENT OF CASES, MAINTENANCE OF CASE RECORDS 
8.5.1.1 Make applications for child support services readily accessible to the public;  
8.5.1.2 Provide or send applications on the day requested by NCP or CP, if requested in person, or 

within five (5) days if requested by telephone or mail.  Along with the Department approved 
Title IV-D application which includes a description of services, the individual's rights and 
responsibilities; 

8.5.1.3 Accept an application as filed on the day it is received;  
8.5.1.4 Within twenty (20) calendar days of receipt of a referral or filing of an application for services 

under 45 C.F.R. 302.33, open a case by establishing a case record.  The case record shall 
include all information pertaining to the case, as set forth in 45 C.F.R. 303.2;  

 
8.6 LOCATION AND USE OF LOCATION INFORMATION 
8.6.1 LOCATION OF NON CUSTODIAL PARENTS 
8.6.1.1 Within no more than seventy-five (75) calendar days of determining that location of a party is 

necessary,  access all appropriate location sources including ATLAS, and ensure that location 
information is sufficient to take the next appropriate action in a case as required by 45 C.F.R. § 
303.3(b)(3)  

8.6.1.2 County Attorney shall attempt locate in cases in which previous attempts to locate NCP, their 
employers, or sources of income and assets have failed when adequate identifying information 
exists as required by 45 C.F.R. § 303.3(b)(3) 

8.6.1.3 County Attorney shall attempt to locate NCP’s income, assets or professional and recreational 
licenses, as appropriate under law.  

 
8.7 LOCATION OF CUSTODIAL PARENTS 
8.7.1 County Attorney shall attempt to locate Custodial Persons when location is necessary to 

distribute support. 
8.7.2 County Attorney shall use State Parent Locate Services’ (SPLS) information only as authorized 

by law. 
 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 5 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

 
8.8 USE OF ATLAS AND FEDERAL PARENT LOCATOR SERVICE (FPLS) INFORMATION  
8.8.1 SAFEGUARDING OF EXPANDED FPLS INFORMATION 
8.8.2 Locate and other information received by a County Attorney is subject to the safeguarding 

provision of 42 U.S.C. § 654 (26) and 45 C.F.R. § 303.21 which states that the information 
received shall be solely used by authorized persons in proceedings or actions to establish 
paternity, or to establish, modify or enforce support, or to make or enforce a child custody 
determination, or for investigation/prosecution of child kidnapping laws.  

8.8.3 REQUESTS FOR LOCATE INFORMATION. Consistent with 42 U.S.C. § 663, only a judicial officer or 
criminal prosecutor may make a written request for locate information as to a parent or child for 
the purpose of enforcing custody or visitation orders/laws or prosecuting child kidnapping 
offenses.  Such a request shall be made in writing on a Department approved form sent to the 
Department States’ SPLS.  

8.8.4 NON-DISCLOSURE INDICATOR: If FPLS information is sought from the Department under the 
terms of this contract and the Department has information that there is reasonable evidence of 
domestic violence or child abuse and the disclosure of information could be harmful to the 
parent or child, the locate information shall not be released.  Consistent with 42 U.S.C. § 653 
(b) (2) (B) and 663 (d) (2) (B), the FPLS locate information may only be disclosed to a court or 
its agent after a judicial officer determines that disclosure to the court or its agent would not be 
harmful to the parent or child.  This written determination, when relayed to the Department is 
transmitted to the Secretary of Health and Human Services and the non-disclosure indicator is 
temporarily lifted to release the requested information for this the specific request only.  

8.8.5 If disclosure is made to a criminal prosecutor, the court should so state and specifically prohibit 
disclosure to any other person if the court determines that disclosure of such information to any 
other person would be harmful to the parent or child.  The FPLS information shall only be 
released to any other authorized person under 42 U.S.C. § 653 and 663 after a court 
determines that release of the information to such an authorized person would not be harmful 
to the parent or child.  Any determination to override a non-disclosure indicator at the Expanded 
Federal Parent Locator Service shall be in writing, contain findings of fact (including the 
authorized use to be made of the information), be signed by the judicial officer and request the 
Department and Secretary of Health and Human Services to provide the information.  

 
8.9 ESTABLISHMENT OF PATERNITY  
8.9.1 In each Title IV-D case, the County Attorney shall, when necessary attempt to establish 

paternity.  
8.9.2 Check all appropriate databases and other sources including the Office of Vital Records, 

Superior Court records for the Gila County and the Hospital Paternity Program Registry to 
verify whether paternity has already been established. 

8.9.3 Within ninety (90) calendar days of locating the alleged father, the County Attorney shall either 
obtain a stipulated agreement to paternity or file for paternity establishment and complete 
service of process to establish paternity.  Unsuccessful attempts to serve process shall be 
documented as specified by the Department consistent with 45 C.F.R. 303.3.  

8.9.4 Attempts to obtain judgments to recover genetic testing costs, whenever possible and as 
permitted by federal law.  45 C.F.R 303.5.  

8.9.5 In any case in which an alleged father is excluded but more than one alleged father has been 
identified, attempt to establish paternity for each alleged father identified until paternity is 
established or all alleged fathers are excluded by court process or genetic tests.  

8.9.6 Attempt voluntary paternity acknowledgment using the following methods, including but not 
limited to: in-office, court stipulations, hospital based programs or medical facilities’ programs if 
available.  

8.9.7 Not attempt to establish paternity in any case in which good cause not to proceed (as defined 
by 45 C.F.R 303.5) has been established.  

8.9.8 Afford alleged fathers the opportunity to file an application to request Title IV-D services to 
initiate a paternity action, and provide them with paternity establishment services. 

8.9.9 The County Attorney is required to purchase services for genetic testing under the 
Department's genetic paternity testing contract. 

 
8.10 ESTABLISHMENT OF SUPPORT 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 6 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

8.10.1 In each Title IV-D case, the County Attorney shall pursue establishment of support as 
appropriate pursuant to 45 C.F.R. § 303.4 including: 

8.10.2 When necessary, attempt to establish an order or complete service of process of a petition for 
establishment of a support order within ninety (90) calendar days of locating a NCP; 

8.10.3 If the court dismisses a petition for establishment of a support order without prejudice, examine  
the reasons for dismissal, determine when it would be appropriate to seek an order in the 
future, and seek a support order at that time; 

8.10.4 Establish child support orders from the date of service of process or other successful 
notification within the following timeframes:  

8.10.4 1.  seventy-five percent (75%) in six (6) months; and, 
 2.  ninety percent (90%) in twelve (12) months; 
8.10.5 Ensure that the parties receive a copy of the order; and, 
8.10.6 Attempt to obtain default orders and judgments if the NCP does not respond to process.  
 
8.11 ESTABLISHMENT OF MEDICAL SUPPORT 
8.11.1 In each Title IV-D case, the County Attorney shall:  
8.11.2 Attempt to include medical support in each new or modified support order; 
8.11.3 Ensure that the responsible parent or employer provides the health insurance coverage 

required by the support order; 
8.11.4 Within three (3) calendar  days of receipt of health insurance information, input the policy 

number, insurance provider and the effective dates of insurance coverage on appropriate 
ATLAS screen(s).  

8.11.5 After receipt of a Department list of cases, when appropriate, petition the Court or 
administrative authority to modify existing support orders to include medical support, in the form 
of health insurance coverage, and allocation of uncovered medical expenses for the cases 
identified by the Department, even if no adjustment in the child support amount is necessary; 
and, 

8.11.6 Enforce collection of medical support orders which have been reduced to judgment.  Verify and 
document in ATLAS all lapses/terminations in medical insurance ordered by the Court.  

 
8.12 SUPPORT ORDER AND JUDGMENT RECORD 
8.12.1 A record of all support orders and judgments in Title IV-D cases must be maintained on 

ATLAS.  Within five (5) days after entry of any local order, judgment or receipt of a responding 
court's order or judgment in an initiating UIFSA case, the County Attorney shall enter into 
ATLAS complete information regarding the orders along with the debt information that will allow 
payment processing by the Arizona Child Support Payment Clearinghouse.   

 
8.12.2 DEBT MANAGEMENT.  For cases with existing court orders, the County Attorney shall establish 

an accurate, certifiable arrearage amount, including interest, pursuant to Department policy and 
procedures based on those court orders, any affidavits of direct pay and payment histories, 
unless there has been a judicial determination of arrearages for the relevant period of time.  
The County Attorney shall be responsible for correcting incorrect debts on ATLAS as mistakes 
are discovered.  The physical case file shall contain an arrears calculation to support each debt 
loaded onto ATLAS, except for those determined by a court.  The Department shall provide the 
County Attorney with the Department’s Supervisory Debt Review Checklist.  The County 
Attorney shall review five (5) cases per debt worker per month using the Supervisory Debt 
Review Checklist: 

8.12.2. a.  Court docket number; 
             b. Amount of support ordered, frequency of payment, due date of first and subsequent             

payments; 
 c.  FIPS code, where appropriate; 
 d.  Judgment type, amount and period; and set up Debt 
 
8.12.3 Debt Audits.  The County Attorney shall respond timely to annual debt audit requests for case 

files, debt review feedback and corrective action plans.  The County Attorney shall be 
responsible for correcting identified deficiencies and implementing any required corrective 
action plans within a reasonable agreed-upon period of time.   

 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 7 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

8.13 ENFORCEMENT OF SUPPORT OBLIGATIONS 
8.13.1 In each Title IV-D case in which the obligation to support and the amount of the obligation has 

been established, the County Attorney shall:  
 1.  Monitor compliance with the support obligation;  
             2.  Enforce the obligation in each case as required by 45 C.F.R. § 303.6; 
             3.  Within thirty (30) calendar days of identification of a delinquency or other support-related 

noncompliance with 
                   the order, initiate any appropriate enforcement actions such as income withholding, 

unemployment intercept, driver or professional license suspension (A.R.S. § 25-517 and 
A.R.S. § 25-518) asset seizure or contempt proceedings;  

              4. Issue administrative income withholding orders, as appropriate, within two days of receipt 
of an income withholding order work list item; 

              5. Participate in the Financial Institution Data Match and the Child Support Lien Network 
process offered through ATLAS automation. These programs are automated and worked 
by DCSS’ Specialized Services Region and at no cost to the County Attorney. 

8.13.2 If enforcement attempts are unsuccessful, examine the reasons the attempts have been 
unsuccessful, determine when it would be appropriate to take additional enforcement action, 
and initiate appropriate enforcement actions.  

 
8.14 INTERGOVERNMENTAL RESPONSIBILITIES  
8.14.1 For the intergovernmental cases with its caseload, the County Attorney shall: 
8.14.1.1 Cooperate with the Arizona Central Registry;  
8.14.1.2 Work intergovernmental cases in accordance with the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act 

(UIFSA), the Full Faith and Credit for Support Orders Act (FFCCSOA) and  any other 
requirements of federal law and regulations as currently promulgated or adopted during the 
term of this agreement, specifically including but not limited to 45 C.F.R. § 303.7(D). This shall 
include both initiating and responding cases; 

8.14.1.3 Assert long-arm jurisdiction whenever possible to establish paternity and support;  
8.14.1.4 Initiate a case to another jurisdiction if Arizona is unable to take the next appropriate action; 

and 
8.14.1.5 Cooperate with the IV-D agencies of other states or the central authority of another country.  
 
8.15 REVIEW AND ADJUSTMENT 
8.15.1 At the request of a party subject to the order, the County Attorney shall review any Title IV-D 

case to determine if modification of the order is appropriate.  The review and adjustment of 
existing orders shall be in accordance with and current Department policy and procedures.   

8.15.5 Upon request for review and adjustment by a party subject to another state’s order, conduct a 
review taking the following actions:  

 1.  Contact the issuing state with the order; 
 2.  Provide pertinent information; and, 
 3.  Request that the state with the order conduct the review unless neither party nor the 

child now resides in that state.  If both parties reside in Arizona, should obtain the 
necessary information and conduct the review. Otherwise, initiate the case to the state 
where the party not requesting the modification resides.  

 
8.16 CASE CLOSURE 
8.16.1 The County Attorney shall perform a timely review of all cases eligible for closure and close 

appropriate cases pursuant to the federal requirements (45 C.F.R. 303.11) and the 
Department's case closure policy and procedures.  

8.16.2 The County Attorney shall close ninety percent (90%) of cases meeting the closure 
requirements and policy within twelve (12) months of eligibility. 

 
8.17 SERVICES TO INDIVIDUALS NOT RECEIVING TANF OR TITLE IV-E FOSTER CARE ASSISTANCE: 
8.17.1 The County Attorney shall provide all appropriate Title IV-D services to all individuals who are 

eligible to receive child support services.  The County Attorney shall provide child support 
services to any individual who:  



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 8 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

 1.  Files an application for services (including alleged fathers and Non-Custodial Persons, 
as required by law)  in an intergovernmental case, only the initiating state may require an 
application under this section; or 

 2.  Is referred as an MAO recipient; or  
3.  Has been receiving Title IV-D services and is no longer eligible for assistance under the 
TANF, IV-E foster care or AHCCCS program, has not requested case closure and whose 
case does not qualify for closure under Department policy.  This includes cases where the 
individual is not an Arizona resident.  
 

8.18 TANF RESPONSIBILITIES 
8.18.1 TANF Pre-Eligibility Cooperation:  Cash Assistance Applicants are provided with the 

Verification of Cooperation (FAA-1221A form) with DCSS and requested to appear at the 
appropriate Title IV-D/DCSS field office to provide the required information.  When all the 
required information and documentation is obtained, the County Attorney will complete the Title 
IV-D portion of the FAA-1221A.  If a Cash Assistance Applicant (CA) appears in a Title IV-D 
office that is outside the zip code assignment of that office, the Cash Assistance Applicant must 
still be assisted with the completion of the FAA-1221A.   

 
8.18.2 Failure of TANF Recipient to Cooperate and Good Cause Exceptions:  The County 

Attorney shall follow all state policies and procedures governing cooperation by a TANF or Title 
XIX recipient with the Title IV-D program including determination of good cause as defined by 
A.R.S. Section 46-292.  The County Attorney will ensure the non-cooperative custodial person 
has received due process and is afforded an opportunity to cooperate prior to imposing a 
sanction.  Once the custodial person receives due process and remains uncooperative the 
County Attorney shall appropriately document ATLAS and generate a sanction notice through 
the IV-A computer system.   When the custodial person begins cooperating with the Title IV-D 
Program, the County Attorney shall document the ATLAS system appropriately.  If the custodial 
person claims good cause for not cooperating, the County Attorney shall refer the claim and 
supporting documentation to the Department’s Office of Special Investigations (OSI).  Once the 
OSI investigation is received, the County Attorney shall make the final determination of good 
cause.  

 
8.18.3 Communication Regarding Potential Settlement.  When an offer to settle support 

arrearages on a case is received, the County Attorney shall notify the DCSS Settlement Team 
at DCSSSettlement@azdes.gov which has been designated by the Department to approve 
such settlements. 

 
8.19 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS AND MEASURES 
8.19.1 Performance standards required by federal statute and regulations set forth in 42 U.S.C. § 652, 

45 C.F.R. 302.70, 303.101 and 305.2 are incorporated and made part of this agreement.  
 
8.19.2 The County Attorney shall achieve a compliance rate in accordance with goals set by DCSS.  
 
8.20 PROGRAM PERFORMANCE AUDITS AND REVIEWS 
8.20.1 Performance Audits and Reviews shall be in accordance with 8.19.1. 
 
8.21 CUSTOMER SERVICE 
8.21.1 The County Attorney commits to delivering quality, efficient child support enforcement services 

to the public.  The County Attorney and its representatives shall be respectful, courteous, 
professional and knowledgeable as to services provided. 

8.21.2 The County Attorney commits to providing customer service and access during normal 
business hours, which includes answering telephone calls, serving walk-in customers and 
returning telephone messages within two business days.  The County Attorney commits to 
answering any and all customer service inquiries directed to their office on their county 
caseload.  These inquiries include, but are not limited to, questions regarding payments and 
distribution, debt balances and or adjustments, the accuracy of debts, tax intercept, 
administrative review and other issues, including automated actions, on the cases.   

mailto:DCSSSettlement@azdes.gov


 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 9 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

8.21.3 Payor Receipts. When a payor pays a support obligation in cash at the County Attorney office, 
County Attorney staff shall issue the payor a receipt, including the payor’s name, ATLAS 
number, and amount of the payment and the signature of the staff member who accepted the 
payment.  County Attorney staff shall encourage the payor not to make cash payments in the 
future, but rather to mail a check or money order to the Clearinghouse. When a payor pays at 
the County Attorney’s office with a check, County Attorney shall forward the check to the 
Clearinghouse, but staff shall provide him/her with an envelope and address of the 
Clearinghouse and ask him/her to mail it to the Clearinghouse in the future. .   

8.21.4 Administrative Review Requests by Obligees Contesting Distribution of Support.  The 
County Attorney shall notify the Department within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving a written 
request for administrative review by an obligee contesting distribution pursuant to A.R.S. §46-
408 and 25-522.  A copy of the written request for administrative review shall be forwarded to 
the Department within two (2) business days.  The Department shall handle all such requests 
statewide.  The County Attorney shall cooperate with the Department and with the Attorney 
General's Child Support Section by promptly providing necessary information and/or forwarding 
the case file by express mail to the appropriate person upon request.  Should the County 
Attorney fail to cooperate and such non-cooperation results in a monetary loss to the 
Department, the Department shall reduce the incentives due the County Attorney in an amount 
equal to the loss suffered by the Department.  

8.21.5 When a County Attorney is contacted by the Department regarding a customer service issue, 
the County Attorney commits to contacting the Department within twenty-four (24) hours and to 
research the issue(s) within two (2) business days.  

 
8.22 REIMBURSEMENT REQUIREMENTS: 
8.22.1 The County Attorney shall submit an annual summary operating budget based on federal fiscal 

year to ADES prior to September 1
st
 of any year this agreement is in effect which reflects the 

projected County Attorney expenditures for child support enforcement activities. 

8.22.2 If the County Attorney intends to claim reimbursement for indirect costs as part of its annual 

summary operating budget, it shall provide ADES with a copy of its cost allocation plan 

annually.  The plan shall comply with the standards contained in OMB Circular A-87 and      

subject to written approval from the ADES.  The approval shall be provided prior to the date of 

any period for which reimbursement is requested. 

8.22.3 Actual, allowable expenditures shall be determined in accordance with provisions of this 

agreement, 45 C.F.R. 74.1, et seq. and 45 C.F.R. 304. 
8.22.4 When the Federal Office of Child Support Enforcement conducts a financial audit and disallows 

County Attorney expenses already reimbursed by ADES, the County Attorney shall be liable for 
an amount equal to any disallowance as to its expenses. 

 
8.23 THE ADES WILL 

8.23.1 Reimburse the County Attorney for costs incurred in the delivery of Contract services during the 

term of this Agreement. 
8.23.2 Under this agreement the reimbursement rate shall be at the applicable amount established by 

the federal government in accordance with 42 U.S. Code, Section 655 (a)(2). 
8.23.3 Upon request DCSS and the Attorney General’s Office shall permit County Attorney to 

participate in ATLAS and other training opportunities available to DCSS and the Attorney 
General Office employees.  

8.24 INCENTIVE PAYMENTS: 
8.24.1 The ADES will pay the County Attorney an amount equal to the proportionate share of 

incentives earned based on performance in the five federally established incentive measures 
for the quarter in which the incentives are earned.  The County Attorney’s proportionate share 
shall be based upon the methodology set forth in the ADES current incentive policy, which is 
incorporated by reference into this agreement.   

8.24.2 The ADES will determine incentive payments for each County Attorney based on performance 
in the five federally established incentive measures. 

8.24.3 Incentives paid each quarter to the counties are calculated based on “Arizona IV-D Incentive 
Distribution  

8.24.4 Arizona allocates the Incentive Pool based on the federal incentive distribution model which 
includes the following five (5) performance measures: 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 10 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

  
1. Paternity Establishment Percentage; 
2. Percentage of cases with support orders; 
3. Collection rate of current support 
4. Percentage of cases with collection on arrears and 
5. Cost Effectiveness Ratio (total dollars collected per dollar of expenditures). 

 
8.24.5 Collections are calculated by county for both DCSS and County Attorney run programs. 
8.24.6 Cost by county includes courts, DCSS local offices and the central admin allocated costs.  
8.24.7 State Share of Retained Earnings retained and passed to the County Attorney since they run 
 their own program. 
8.24.8 Incentives are paid to county courts for services rendered.  
8.24.9 The County Attorney agrees to isolate incentive payments received from other funding and 

dedicate the use of such payments solely for the enhancement of the County Attorneys’ Title 
IV-D program. Expenditure of incentive payments must follow the requirements of Section 7309 
of the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005. 

 
8.25 STATE SHARE OF RETAINED EARNINGS: 
8.25.1 ADES will pay the County Attorney its share of Retained Earnings based upon the methodology 

set forth in the ADES current State Share of Retained Earnings (SSRE) policy. 
8.25.2 The County Attorney must have budgeted expenditures in County Attorney appropriated funds 

for the Title IV-D Program at least equal to the County Attorney Title IV-D contribution for the 
latest fiscal year the County Attorney participated in the sharing of SSRE.   

8.25.3 ADES will pay the County Attorney within forty-five (45) days after the end of the quarter for 
which it was earned. 

 
8.26 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
8.26.1 The Contractor shall provide to ADES the following reports: 

8.26.2 A Monthly End Production Report, consistent with Appendix A, no later than fifteen (15) days 

following each month during the contract term.   

8.26.3 County Attorney shall provide all reports to the Department no later than the 28th day following 

each month during the contract term.  All reports shall reference the contract number and be 

submitted to the person designated by the Department in a manner agreed upon by the 

Department. 
8.26.4 No later than forty-five (45) days following the termination of this Contract, the County Attorney 

shall submit to the Department a final program and fiscal report.   
8.26.5 Reports shall be sent to: 
 

Arizona Department of Economic Security 
Division of Child Support Services 
Contracts Unit, Site Code 019A 
PO Box 40458 
Phoenix, AZ  85067-0458 

 
 
8.26.6 The County Attorney shall submit the Certificate of Insurance as specified in Paragraph 21.2 of 

this Agreement to: 
 

Arizona Department of Economic Security 
Division of Child Support Services 
Contracts Unit, Site Code 019A 
PO Box 40458 
Phoenix, AZ  85067 

 
8.27 PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS 

8.27.1 Upon receipt of CS-016-FF, Certified Public Expenditure Statement (CPES), ADES will 

reimburse the County Attorney for costs incurred in the delivery of Contract Services during the 

term of this Agreement. 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 11 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

8.27.2 County Attorney shall include supporting expense documents each month with the submission 

of the CPES. 
8.27.3 CPES and supporting expense documents shall be submitted no later than (28) days after the 

end of the month services were provided. 
8.27.4 CPES shall be submitted to:  
 

Arizona Department of Economic Security 
Division of Child Support Services 
Contracts Unit, Site Code 019A 
PO Box 40458 
Phoenix, AZ  85067-0458 
 

8.27.5 Services provided to ADES will be paid to the County Attorney via Automated Clearing House 
(ACH) by using the ACH process.  Instructions and downloadable forms are found at 
https://gao.az.gov/sites/default/files/GAO-
618%20ACH%20Vendor%20Authorization%20030215-S%26S.pdf  

 
8.28 NOTICES 
8.28.1 All notices to the County Attorney regarding this agreement shall be sent to the following 

address: 
 

Gila County Attorney, Child Support Division 
157 South Broad Street 
Globe, AZ 85501 

 
8.28.2 All notices to the ADES regarding this agreement shall be sent to the following address: 
 

Arizona Department of Economic Security 
Division of Child Support Services 
Contracts Unit, Site Code 019A 
PO Box 40458 
Phoenix, AZ  85067-0458 
 

8.28.3 Upon contract award, DCSS may establish an email address for all notices, claims and reports 
to be sent to. 

 
9.0 APPLICABLE LAW 
9.1 This Contract shall be governed and interpreted by the laws of the State of Arizona. The 

materials and services supplied under this Contract shall comply with all applicable Federal, 
State and local laws, and the County Attorney shall maintain all applicable licenses and permit 
requirements. 

9.2 In accordance with ARS § 41-2501, et. seq, and AAC R2-7-101 et seq, this Agreement shall be 
governed and interpreted by the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 
10.0 ARBITRATION 
10.1 The parties to this Contract agree to resolve all disputes arising out of or relating to this 

Contract through arbitration, after exhausting applicable administrative review, to the extent 
required by A.R.S.§12-1518 except as may be required by other applicable statutes. 

 
11.0 AUDIT 
11.1 In accordance with A.R.S. §35-214, the Contractor shall retain and shall contractually require 

each subcontractor to retain all data, books and other records (“records”) relating to this 
Agreement for a period of five (5) years after the completion of the Agreement. All records shall 
be subject to inspection and audit by the State at reasonable times.  Upon request, the 
Contractor shall produce the original of any or all such records. 

 

 

 

https://gao.az.gov/sites/default/files/GAO-618%20ACH%20Vendor%20Authorization%20030215-S%26S.pdf
https://gao.az.gov/sites/default/files/GAO-618%20ACH%20Vendor%20Authorization%20030215-S%26S.pdf


 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 12 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

12.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

12.1 All staff and management associated with the Contract shall be required to identify whether 

they are party to a current child support case in Arizona.  This includes phlebotomists who 

subcontract.  If it is determined that the County Attorney, an employee of the County Attorney, 

or a subcontractor to the County Attorney is a party to a child support case or has a family 

member who is a party to a case, a conflict of interest shall be deemed to exist if that staff 

member or subcontractor is actively involved in the case. The County Attorney shall 

immediately notify the Department of the conflict of interest, and ensure that the staff member 

or subcontractor will have no involvement in the case or ask to have the case reassigned to a 

regional office managed by ADES. 

 

13.0 CONFIDENTIALITY 

13.1 County Attorney shall adhere to standards of confidentiality of record maintenance in 

accordance with the law and DCSS policy.  The County Attorney agrees that any information 

provided by the Department or the State relative to the applicants or recipients of public 

assistance shall be used only for the administration of this contract, or in any investigation or 

civil proceeding conducted pursuant to this contract.  The County Attorney shall provide 

safeguards to restrict the use or disclosure of any information concerning any individual who is 

party to a case.  The County Attorney understands that revealing any information concerning 

the NCP or CP, one to the other, is in violation of the law and grounds for immediate 

termination of this contract.  This includes, but is not limited to, revealing the date, location and 

time that a party to a case is scheduled for paternity testing. 

13.2 The safeguards provided shall also prohibit disclosure of any information which identifies by 

name, address, or social security number the Custodial Person to any committee or legislative 

body.  The County Attorney agrees that any federal or state tax-related information shall be 

treated as confidential and shall not be disclosed. 

13.3 The County Attorney shall establish and maintain procedures and controls that are acceptable 

to the Department for the purpose of assuring that no information contained in its records or 

obtained from the Department, or from others carrying out its functions under the contract, shall 

be used or disclosed by the County Attorney or by the County Attorney’s agents, officers or 

employees except as required to perform duties under the contract.  Persons requesting such 

information shall be referred to the Department.  The County Attorney also agrees that any 

information pertaining to an individual shall not be disclosed other than to employees or officers 

of the County Attorney for the performance of duties under the contract, unless otherwise 

agreed to in writing by the Department. 

13.4 The County Attorney agrees not to use or permit the use of the names and/or addresses of 

individuals referred from the Department for any commercial purpose. 

13.5 The County Attorney shall observe and abide by all applicable State and federal statutes, rules 

and regulations regarding the use or disclosure of information including, but not limited to, 

information concerning applicants for and recipients of contract services.  To the extent 

permitted by law, the County Attorney shall release information to the ADES and to the 

Attorney General’s Office as required by the terms of this contract, by law or upon their request. 
 
14.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
14.1 In accordance with  A.R.S. §38-511, the State or the County Attorney may within three years 

after execution cancel the Agreement, without penalty or further obligation, if any person 
significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the Agreement on 
behalf of the State, at any time while the Agreement is in effect, becomes an employee or 
agent of any other party to the Agreement in any capacity or a consultant to any other party to 
the Agreement with respect to the matter of the Agreement.  

 

15.0 DATA SHARING AGREEMENT 
15.1 When determined by the Department that sharing of confidential data will occur with the County 

Attorney, the County Attorney shall complete the ADES Data Sharing Request Agreement and 
submit the completed Agreement to the ADES Program Designated Staff prior to any work 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 13 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

commencing or data shared.  A separate Data Sharing Request Agreement shall be required 
between the County Attorney and each ADES Program sharing confidential data. 

 
16.0 E-VERIFY 
16.1 In accordance with A.R.S. §41-4401, the parties warrant compliance with all Federal 

immigration laws and regulations relating to employees and warrants its compliance with A.R.S. 
§ 23-214, Subsection A. 

  
17.0 FEDERAL IMMIGRATION AND NATIONALITY ACT  
17.1 By entering into the Agreement, the County Attorney warrants compliance with the Federal 

Immigration and Nationality Act.  (FINA) and all other Federal immigration laws and regulations 
related to the immigration status of its employees.  The County Attorney shall obtain statements 
from its subcontractors certifying compliance and shall furnish the statements to the 
Procurement Officer upon request.  These warranties shall remain in effect through the term of 
the Agreement.  The County Attorney and its subcontractors shall also maintain Employment 
Eligibility Verification forms (I-9) as required by the U.S. Department of Labor’s Immigration and 
Control Act, for all employees performing work under the Agreement.  I-9 forms are available 
for download at USCIS.GOV. 

17.2 The State may request verification of compliance for any County Attorney or subcontractor 
performing work under the Agreement.  Should the State suspect or find that the County 
Attorney or any of its subcontractors are not in compliance, the State may pursue any and all 
remedies allowed by law, including, but not limited to suspension of work, termination of the 
Agreement for default, and suspension and/or debarment of the County Attorney.  All costs 
necessary to verify compliance are the responsibility of the County Attorney. 

 
18.0 INDEMNIFICATION  
18.1 Indemnification for County Attorney: 
18.1.1 Each party (as "Indemnitor") agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other party (as 

"Indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses 
(including reasonable attorney's fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Claims") arising 
out of bodily injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent 
that such Claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the Indemnitee are caused by 
the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the Indemnitor, its officers, officials, 
agents, employees, or volunteers.  The State of Arizona, (State Agency) is self-insured per 
A.R.S. 41-621. 

18.2 Indemnification for Subcontractor 
18.2.1 In addition, the County Attorney shall cause its contractor(s) and subcontractors, if any, to 

indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the State of Arizona, any jurisdiction or agency 
issuing any permits for any work arising out of this Agreement, and their respective directors, 
officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and 
against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court 
costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation) (hereinafter 
referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage 
to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the 
negligent or willful acts or omissions of the County Attorney’s contractor or any of the directors, 
officers, agents, or employees or subcontractors of such contractor.  This indemnity includes 
any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law or 
arising out of the failure of such contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, 
ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the 
Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful 
acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by such contractor from and against any 
and all claims.  It is agreed that such contractor will be responsible for primary loss 
investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable. 

 
19.0 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS  
19.1 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR GOVERNMENTAL PARTIES TO AN IGA: 
19.1.1 None. 
 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 14 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

19.2 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR ANY CONTRACTORS USED BY A PARTY TO THE 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT: 
(Note: this applies only to Contractors used by a governmental entity, not to the governmental 
entity itself.) The State of Arizona in no way warrants that the minimum limits contained herein 
are sufficient to protect the governmental entity or County Attorney from liabilities that might 
arise out of the performance of the work under this Agreement by the County Attorney, his 
agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors, and Contractor and the governmental 
entity are free to purchase additional insurance.   
1. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Contractor shall provide coverage with 

limits of liability not less than those stated below. 
1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, personal injury and 
broad form contractual liability. 

 General Aggregate   $2,000,000 

 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate  $1,000,000 

 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

 Blanket Contractual Liability – Written and Oral $1,000,000 

 Fire Legal Liability $     50,000 

 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include coverage for 
sexual abuse and molestation. 

b.   The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured 
language: “The State of Arizona and the Department of Economic 
Security shall be named as additional insureds with respect to 
liability arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf of the 
County Attorney". 

 (Note that the other governmental entity(ies) is/are also required to be 
additional insured(s) and they should supply the Contractor with their own 
list of persons to be insured.) 

c. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the State of Arizona, its 
departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities and its officers, 
officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from work performed by 
or on behalf of the Contractor. 

2. Automobile Liability 
Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and/or non-owned 
vehicles used in the performance of this Agreement. 

 Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured 
language:  “The State of Arizona and the Department of Economic 
Security shall be named as additional insureds with respect to 
liability arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf of the 
County Attorney, involving automobiles owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by the County Attorney". 

b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the State of Arizona, 
its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities and its 
officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from work 
performed by or on behalf of the County Attorney 

  (Note that the other governmental entity(ies) is/are also required to be 
additional insured(s) and they should supply the contractor with their own list 
of persons to be insured.)  

  3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory   

 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $    500,000 

 Disease – Each Employee $    500,000 

 Disease – Policy Limit $1,000,000 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 15 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the State of Arizona, 
its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities and its 
officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from work 
performed by or on behalf of the County Attorney. 

b.  This requirement shall not apply to:  Separately, EACH contractor or 
subcontractor exempt under A.R.S. 23-901, AND when such contractor 
or subcontractor executes the appropriate waiver (Sole 
Proprietor/Independent Contractor) form. 

2. Additional Insurance Requirements:  The policies shall contain, or be endorsed to 
contain, the following provisions:  

 1. The State of Arizona and the Department of Economic Security, 
wherever additional insured status is required such additional insured 
shall be covered to the full limits of liability purchased by the 
Contractor, even if those limits of liability are in excess of those 
required by this Agreement. 

 2. The contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect 
to all other available sources. 

 3. Coverage provided by the contractor shall not be limited to the liability  
  assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement. 

3.  Notice of Cancellation:  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of 
this Agreement shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, 
voided, canceled, or reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior 
written notice has been given to the State of Arizona.  Such notice shall be sent directly 
to the Department of Economic Security, Office of Procurement, 1789 W. 
Jefferson St.  Site Code 805Z, Phoenix, AZ  85007 and shall be sent by certified 
mail, return receipt requested. 

4. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with duly licensed or approved 
non-admitted insurers in the state of Arizona with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than 
A- VII.  The State of Arizona in no way warrants that the above-required minimum 
insurer rating is sufficient to protect the County Attorney from potential insurer 
insolvency. 

5. Verification of Coverage:  County Attorney shall furnish the State of Arizona with 
certificates of insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the State of Arizona) 
as required by this Agreement.  The certificates for each insurance policy are to be 
signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the State of 
Arizona before work commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement 
must be in effect at or prior to commencement of work under this Agreement and 
remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure to maintain the insurance 
policies as required by this Agreement, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material 
breach of Agreement. 
 
All certificates required by this Agreement shall be sent directly to Department of 
Economic Security, Office of Procurement, 1789 W. Jefferson St.  Site Code 
805Z, Phoenix, AZ  85007 unless the Reporting Requirements specifies 
otherwise.  The State of Arizona contract number and contract description shall 
be noted or referenced on the certificate of insurance.  The State of Arizona 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required 
by this Agreement at any time.  DO NOT SEND CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE TO THE STATE 

OF ARIZONA’S RISK MANAGEMENT SECTION.   
 

6. Subcontractors:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as 
insureds under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the State of Arizona separate 
certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.  All coverages for 
subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified above. 

7. Approval:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this 
Agreement shall be made by the Department of Administration, Risk Management 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 16 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

Section, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal 
amendment to the Agreement, but may be made by administrative action. 

 8. Exceptions:  In the event the County Attorney or sub-contractor(s) is/are a public 
entity, then the Insurance Requirements shall not apply.  Such public entity shall 
provide a Certificate of Self-Insurance. If the contractor or sub-contractor(s) is/are a 
State of Arizona agency, board, commission, or university, none of the above shall 
apply. 

 
20.0 IT 508 COMPLIANCE   
20.1 Unless specifically authorized in the Agreement, any electronic or information technology 

offered to the State of Arizona under this agreement shall comply with A.R.S. §41-3531 and 
§3532 and Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which requires that employees and 
members of the public shall have access to and use of information technology that is 
comparable to the access and use by employees and members of the public who are not 
individuals with disabilities. 
 

21.0 NON-AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS  
21.1 In accordance with A.R.S. §35-154, every payment obligation of the State under the Agreement 

is conditioned upon the availability of funds appropriated or allocated for payment of such 
obligation.  If funds are not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, this 
Agreement may be terminated by the State at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  No liability shall accrue to the State in the event his provision is exercised, and the 
State shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments or for any damages as a result of 
termination under this paragraph. 

 
22.0 NON-DISCRIMINATION 
22.1 The County Attorney shall comply with State Executive Order No. 2009-09 and all other 

applicable Federal and State law, rules and regulations, including the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 
 

23.0 OFFSHORE PERFORMANCE OF WORK PROHIBITED 
23.1   Due to security and identity protection concerns, direct services under this contract shall be 

performed within the borders of the United States. Any services that are described in the 
specifications or scope of work that directly serve the State of Arizona or its clients and may 
involve access to secure or sensitive data or personal client data or development or 
modification of software for the State shall be performed within the borders of the United 
States. Unless specifically stated otherwise in the specifications, this definition does not apply 
to indirect or 'overhead' services, redundant back-up services or services that are incidental to 
the performance of the contract. This provision applies to work performed by subcontractors at 
all tiers 

 
24.0 RIGHT OF OFFSET 
24.1 The Department shall be entitled to offset against any sums due the County Attorney, any 

expenses or costs incurred by the Department, or damages assessed by the Department 
concerning the County Attorney’s non-conforming performance or failure to perform the 
Agreement, including expenses, costs and damages. 

 

25.0 SAFEGUARDING OF TAX INFORMATION PER IRS PUBLICATION 1075 
25.1 The County Attorney agrees to comply with all federal statutory and regulatory provisions 

requiring that tax information be safeguarded and kept confidential. See IRS PUBLICATION 1075.   
 
26.0 PERFORMANCE 
 In performance of this contract, the County Attorney agrees to comply with and assume 

responsibility for compliance by his or her employees with the following requirements: 
 
 All work will be done under the supervision of the County Attorney or the County Attorney's 

employees. 
 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 17 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

 Any tax return or tax return information made available in any format shall be used only for the 
purpose of carrying out the provisions of this contract. Information contained in such material 
will be treated as confidential and will not be divulged or made known in any manner to any 
person except as may be necessary in the performance of this contract.  Disclosure to anyone 
other than an officer or employee of the County Attorney will be prohibited. 

 
 All returns and return information will be accounted for upon receipt and properly stored before, 

during, and after processing. In addition, all related output will be given the same level of 
protection as required for the source material. 

 
 The County Attorney certifies that the data processed during the performance of this contract 

will be completely purged from all data storage components of his or her computer facility, and 
no output will be retained by the County Attorney at the time the work is completed. If 
immediate purging of all data storage components is not possible, the County Attorney certifies 
that any IRS data remaining in any storage component will be safeguarded to prevent 
unauthorized disclosures. 

 
 Any spoilage or any intermediate hard copy printout that may result during the processing of 

IRS data will be given to the agency or his or her designee. When this is not possible, the 
County Attorney will be responsible for the destruction of the spoilage or any intermediate hard 
copy printouts, and will provide the agency or his or her designee with a statement containing 
the date of destruction, description of material destroyed, and the method used. 

 
 All computer systems processing, storing, or transmitting Federal tax information must meet the 

requirements defined in IRS Publication 1075. To meet functional and assurance requirements, 
the security features of the environment must provide for the managerial, operational, and 
technical controls. All security features must be available and activated to protect against 
unauthorized use of and access to Federal tax information. 

 No work involving Federal tax information furnished under this contract will be subcontracted 
without prior written approval of the IRS. 

 
 The County Attorney will maintain a list of employees authorized access. Such list will be 

provided to the agency and, upon request, to the IRS reviewing office. 
 
27.0 CRIMINAL/CIVIL SANCTIONS: 

Each officer or employee of any person to whom returns or return information is or may be 
disclosed will be notified in writing by such person that returns or return information disclosed to 
such officer or employee can be used only for a purpose and to the extent authorized herein, 
and that further disclosure of any such returns or return information for a purpose or to an 
extent unauthorized herein constitutes a felony punishable upon conviction by a fine of as much 
as $5,000 or imprisonment for as long as five (5) years, or both, together with the costs of 
prosecution. Such person shall also notify each such officer and employee that any such 
unauthorized further disclosure of returns or return information may also result in an award of 
civil damages against the officer or employee in an amount not less than $1,000 with respect to 
each instance of unauthorized disclosure. These penalties are prescribed by IRC sections 7213 
and 7431 and set forth at 26 CFR 301.6103(n)-1. 

 
 Each officer or employee of any person to whom returns or return information is or may be 

disclosed shall be notified in writing by such person that any return or return information made 
available in any format shall be used only for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of this 
contract. Information contained in such material shall be treated as confidential and shall not be 
divulged or made known in any manner to any person except as may be necessary in the 
performance of the contract. Inspection by or disclosure to anyone without an official need to 
know constitutes a criminal misdemeanor punishable upon conviction by a fine of as much as 
$1,000 or imprisonment for as long as 1 year, or both, together with the costs of prosecution. 
Such person shall also notify each such officer and employee that any such unauthorized 
inspection or disclosure of returns or return information may also result in an award of civil 
damages against the officer or employee [United States for Federal employees] in an amount 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 18 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

equal to the sum of the greater of $1,000 for each act of unauthorized inspection or disclosure 
with respect to which such defendant is found liable or the sum of the actual damages 
sustained by the plaintiff as a result of such unauthorized inspection or disclosure plus in the 
case of a willful inspection or disclosure which is the result of gross negligence, punitive 
damages, plus the costs of the action. These penalties are prescribed by IRC section 7213A 
and 7431. 

 
 Additionally, it is incumbent upon the County Attorney to inform its officers and employees of 

the penalties for improper disclosure imposed by the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. 552a. 
Specifically, 5 U.S.C. 552a(i)(1), which is made applicable to County Attorneys by 5 U.S.C. 
552a(m)(1), provides that any officer or employee of a County Attorney, who by virtue of his/her 
employment or official position, has possession of or access to agency records which contain 
individually identifiable information, the disclosure of which is prohibited by the Privacy Act or 
regulations established thereunder, and who knowing that disclosure of the specific material is 
prohibited, willfully discloses the material in any manner to any person or agency not entitled to 
receive it, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and fined not more than $5,000. The agency will 
have the right to void the contract if the County Attorney fails to provide the safeguards 
described above. 

 
28.0  INSPECTION 
 The IRS and the Agency shall have the right to send its officers and employees into the offices 

and plants of the County Attorney for inspection of the facilities and operations provided for the 
performance of any work under this contract. On the basis of such inspection, specific 
measures may be required in cases where the County Attorney is found to be noncompliant 
with contract safeguards. 

 
29.0 THIRD- PARTY ANTITRUST VIOLATIONS 
29.1 The County Attorney assigns to the Department any claim for overcharges resulting from 

antitrust violations concerning materials or services supplied by third parties to the County 
Attorney, toward fulfillment of this Agreement. 

 
30.0 ATTACHMENTS 
30.1       The following list of Attachments constitutes an integral part of subject agreement: 
30.2 ATTACHMENT 1 - Certification Regarding Lobbying 
30.3 ATTACHMENT 2 - Certification Regarding Maintenance of Effort 
30.4 ATTACHMENT 3 - Sub-recipient Fact Sheet 
 
31.0 EXHIBITS 
31.1 The following list of Exhibits constitutes an integral part of subject agreement: 
31.2 Certification Regarding Lobbing 
  
32.0 APPENDIX  A 
32.1 Monthly Reporting Requirements



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 19 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

 
Attachment 1 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 
 

CERTIFICATION FOR CONTRACTS, GRANTS, LOANS, 
AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS 

 
 
 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
 
(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement. 
 
(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person 
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, 
an officer of employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit 
Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. 
 
(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, 
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code.  Any person who fails to file 
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 
 
 
 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL     TITLE 
 
 
 
 
 

APPLICANT ORGANIZATION      DATE SUBMITTED 

 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 20 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

Attachment 2 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT 
 
 
 
In accordance with the applicable program statute(s) and regulation(s), the 
undersigned certifies that financial assistance provided by the Administration for 
Children and Families, for the specified activities to be performed under the Grants for 
Judicial Services by  
 
        , will be in addition to, and not in 
(Applicant Organization)  
substitution for, comparable activities previously carried on without Federal assistance. 
 
 
 
 

 

Signature of Authorized Certifying Official  
 
 
 

 

Title  
 
 

 

Date  
  
 
 

 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 21 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

ATTACHMENT 3 

SUBRECIPIENT 

FACT SHEET 
 
 

 In accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Subpart D, §400(d), the following information 
is being provided to all sub recipients that receive federal awards passed through from 
the Department of Economic Security (Department).   

 
 
 Official/Legal Name of Sub recipient: 

  Gila County Board of Supervisors, Office of the County Attorney ("County Attorney"). 
 (From the Contract) 

 
 Contract #         
 
 Federal Employer Taxpayer ID # 866000444   ______ 
 
 

 Federal Grantor’s Name __  Department of Health and Human Services 
 

_________________________________________________________ 
 

 CFDA Title and Number ___ _93.563______________________ _ 
 
__________________________________________________________ 

 

 Award Name and Number__Arizona Department of Economic Security__ 
 
         ______ 
 

 Award Period___October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2020_______ 
 

 Pass-through Number Assigned by the Department_G1604AZ4004 
 
 _____________________________________________________________ 

(For example: DES93.48599, where DES identifies that these monies were 
passed through from the Department, 93.485 is the CFDA number, and 99 is 
the award year.  OMB Circular A-133 requires that federal awards received by 
a subrecipient be identified on its Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
with the name of the pass-through entity and identifying number assigned by 
the pass-through entity.) 

 

 A copy of this Fact Sheet should be retained by the program and the 
subrecipient for audit purposes. 

 



 

 
 
 

ADES Contract #_________________   Page 22 of 23   10 1 15 final              
  
 

  

Appendix __A____ 
 
Month End Production Report1 shall contain the following: 

1. Number of court hearing conducted 

 

2. Number of judgments obtained 

 

3. Total amount of judgments 

 

4. Number of legal actions filed 

 

5. Number of actions commenced based on the filing of another party 

 

6. Number of establishment stipulations or establishment done by fast-track process 

 

7. Percentage of hearing quashed for lack of service 

 

8. Number of new establishment orders 

 

9. Cumulative amount of new establishment orders 

 

10.  Number of support orders entered by default 

 

11.  Number of new paternity orders 

 

12.  Number of children for whom paternity was established 

 

13.  Number of modifications resolved by hearing 

 

14.  Cumulative change from modifications resolved by hearing 

 

15.  Number of simplified modifications resolved without hearing 

 

16.  Cumulative change from simplified modifications resolved without  hearing 

 

17.  Enforcement matters resolved (judgments) 

 

18.  Number of contempt findings 

 

19.  Number of parties jailed for civil contempt  

 

 
 

                                            
1
 Most of the information required in this statistical report is generated by ATLAS through use of the 

legal processes tracking screens in ATLAS.  



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



To:  The Gila County Board of Supervisors 

Date:  January 27, 2016 

From:  The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Re:  Child Support Contract; Agenda Item # 3592 

  Section 18.2.1:  Indemnification of Subcontractor 

 

COMMENT 

The Gila County Attorney’s Office tried in vain to obtain a mutually beneficial 
contractual provision relating to indemnification of subcontractors.  The contract 
is, nevertheless, approved as to form.  This is explained in more detail below. 

The State of Arizona has a contract with LabCorp to do genetic paternity testing. 
The contract requires the county to use the same provider.  An agent of LabCorp 
currently uses a space in the Gila County Attorney’s Office Child Support Division 
to do the testing. 

The Gila County Attorney’s Office requested that the contract indemnify the 
county for negligence of the state’s subcontractors, e.g. if an agent of LabCorp 
injured a person and that person sued the county for LabCorp’s negligence. 
However, the state refused to make that change.  (Paragraph 18.2.1 requires the 
county attorney to cause its subcontractors to indemnity the state for any claims 
caused by a subcontractor of the county attorney, however, this requirement is 
not mutual, i.e. it does not require the state to cause its subcontractors to 
indemnify the county.) 

The county attorney’s office opines that the contract complies with the 
requirements to be an enforceable contract although it lacks an indemnification 
provision to protect the county in the event of any claims referred to above. 



   

ARF-3568     Consent Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  

Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Jonathan Bearup, Deputy Court Administrator, Superior Court
Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration
Fiscal Year: 2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

N/A Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
FY 2016 – 2017 Reappointment of Gary V. Scales as Superior Court Judge Pro
Tempore.

Background Information
Mr. Gary Scales was appointed as full-time Superior Court Judge Pro Tempore on May
1, 2010, to prepare for the retirement of Judge Peter DeNinno in July 2010, and he has
served in that capacity since that time.  Currently he is assigned minor dependency,
child support enforcement, criminal and domestic relations cases, though he also
handles other matters as needed. Judge Scales’ regular full-time salary is included in
the County General Fund budget for the current fiscal year and will be requested for
FY 2016-2017.

Evaluation
Mr. Gary Scales was appointed as a full-time Judge Pro Tempore on May 1, 2010.  His
services are considered necessary and integral for the Court to process cases in a
timely manner.  The County receives reimbursement from the State for services and
judicial activities relative to the processing of child support enforcement cases.

Conclusion
The Court requires Board of Supervisors’ approval for the reappointment of Judge Gary
V. Scales as Judge Pro Tempore for the period of July 1, 2016, until June 30, 2017, to
facilitate the processing of cases in a timely manner.

Recommendation
The Court respectfully recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Presiding
Judge Timothy M. Wright's reappointment of Judge Gary V. Scales as Judge Pro
Tempore for the Superior Court in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2016, until
June 30, 2017.

Suggested Motion



Approval of the reappointment of Judge Gary V. Scales as Judge Pro Tempore for the
Superior Court in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2016, until June 30, 2017.

Attachments
BoS Approval
Memo to BoS 







   
ARF-3565     Consent Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
East Verde Park Fire District Board Appointment.

Background Information
A. R. S. §48-803 (B) provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district
board, other than from expiration of a term, the remaining board
members shall fill the vacancy by the appointment of an interim member.

Evaluation
East Verde Park Fire District Governing Board Member, James Hinton,
tendered his resignation notice effective September 23, 2015.  On
September 23, 2015, the East Verde Park Fire District, Board of
Directors, appointed Maggie Mean-Evans to fulfill Mr. Hinton's unexpired
term of office which ends December 31, 2016.

Conclusion
On September 23, 2015, the East Verde Park Fire District, Board of
Directors, unanimously voted to appoint Maggie Mean-Evans to fulfill
James Hinton's unexpired term of office, which ends on December 31,
2016.

Recommendation
The Gila County Elections Department recommends that the Board of
Supervisors acknowledge James Hinton's resignation from the East Verde
Park Fire District Board of Directors and the appointment of Maggie
Mean-Evans to fulfill Mr. Hinton's term of office beginning 23, 2015, and
ending December 31, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of James Hinton's resignation from the East Verde Park



Acknowledgment of James Hinton's resignation from the East Verde Park
Fire District Board of Directors, and the appointment of Maggie
Mean-Evans to fulfill Mr. Hinton's unexpired term, effective September
23, 2015, through December 31, 2016.

Attachments
Oath of Office for Maggie Mean-Evans
9-23-15 Meeting Minutes
9-23-2015 Meeting Agenda
James Hinton's Resignation Letter
Arizona Revised Statute 48-803





















   
ARF-3563     Consent Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Appointment of Precinct Committeemen to the Gila County Republican
Party.

Background Information
A. R. S. §16-821 (B) provides if a vacancy exists in the office of the
precinct committeemen, the vacancy shall be filled by the Board of
Supervisors from a list of names submitted by the County Chairman of
the appropriate political party.

Evaluation
Two new individuals, Jane Bradley Payson #2 and Peggy Porter Globe
#7, have been submitted by the Gila County Republican Committee Chair
for the appointment to the office of the precinct committeemen.  Per
Arizona Revised Statute, the Board of Supervisors has the authority to
make these appointments.

Conclusion
The Gila County Republican Party Chairman has submitted Jane Bradley
Evans and Peggy Porter for appointment by the Board of Supervisors.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
the appointments as submitted by the Gila County Republican Committee.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the following precinct committeemen appointments as
submitted by the Gila County Republican Committee: Payson #2 - Jane
Bradley Evans and Globe #7 - Peggy Porter.



Attachments
Peggy Porter Appointment
Jane Evans Appointment
A.R.S. 16-821









   

ARF-3561     Consent Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

01-07-16 to
07-06-16

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 6 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical Examiner
Services for Gila County.

Background Information
On January 7, 2014, Gila County entered into Professional Services Agreement No.
062813 with Dr. Mark Fischione for Medical Examiner Services for Gila County.  The
contract was issued for a period of one year in a not to exceed amount of $30,000
without prior written approval from Gila County.  Additionally, the contract allows for
the option to renew the contract term for three additional one-year periods.    

On June 24, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to increase
the total contract by an additional $40,000 for a new total contract amount of $70,000.

On October 21, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 to increase
the total contract by an additional $30,000 for a new total contract amount of
$100,000.

On December 16, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 3 to
extend the term of the contract from January 7, 2015 to January 6, 2016. 
Amendment No. 3 also served to increase the original dollar amount of the contract
from $30,000 to $70,000.

On September 1, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 4
to increase the total contract by an additional $40,000 for a new, not to exceed
without written authorization contract amount of $110,000 for the January 7, 2015, to
January 6, 2016 contract term.

On January 19, 2016, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 5 to
increase the total contract by an additional $10,000 for a new, not to exceed without
written authorization contract amount of $120,000 for the January 7, 2015 to January
6, 2016 contract term.



Evaluation
Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical Examiner Services for Gila
County with Dr. Mark Fischione will expire on January 6, 2016.  Per Article 11-Term,
of the contract documents, Gila County has the option to renew the contract for three
additional one-year terms.  At this time, staff and Dr. Fischione, are exploring ways to
possibly reduce costs to the County for medical examiner services.  To allow the time
necessary to perform an in-depth analysis of all costs associated with
autopsy services, staff desires to extend the contract for a six month period.
 Amendment No. 6 will serve to extend the contract term from January 7, 2016 to July
6, 2016.

Additionally, Amendment No. 6 will increase the original contract amount of $30,000
by an additional $35,000, for a new, not to exceed without prior written authorization
total contract amount of $65,000, for the contract term from January 7, 2016 to July
6, 2016.

Conclusion
Staff feels it would best serve the interest of Gila County to continue to contract with
Dr. Mark Fischione for medical examiner services for Gila County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the approval of Amendment No. 6 to extend the contract term of
Professional Services Agreement No. 062813 with Dr. Mark Fischione for medical
examiner services for Gila County for a six month period, and to increase the original
contract amount from $30,000 to $65,000 for the contract term from January 7, 2016,
to July 6, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 6 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical
Examiner Services between Gila County and Mark A. Fischione, M.D., PLC to extend
the term of the contract from January 7, 2016, to July 6, 2016, and to increase the
original contract amount from $30,000 to $65,000 for the new contract term.

Attachments
Approval as to Form
Amendment No. 6 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Amendment No. 5 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
Professional Services Agreement No. 062831-Medical Examiner Services with Dr.
Fischione



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



































   
ARF-3573     Consent Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  
Reporting
Period:

November 2015

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Kaycee Stratton, Chief Deputy Recorder, Recorder's Office

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for November 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the November 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Recorder's Office.

Attachments
Recorder's November 2015 Monthly Report





















   
ARF-3564     Consent Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  
Reporting
Period:

December 2015

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court,

Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for December 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the December 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk's December 2015 monthly report





















   
ARF-3578     Consent Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  
Reporting
Period:

January 5, 2016 and January 19, 2016

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Information
Subject
January 5, 2016, and January 19, 2016, Board of Supervisors' meeting
minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the January 5, 2016, and January 19, 2016, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
01-19-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
01-05-16 BOS Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 8 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  January 19, 2016 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian E. 
Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.  
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Jacque Sanders led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Max Brann of the Mountain Bible Church in 
Payson delivered the invocation. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Supervisors' Annual Property Tax Sale/Auction for the sale of real 
property deeded to the State of Arizona by Treasurer's Deed in the year 
2015.  
 
Michael Pastor, District II Supervisor, advised that he would read each parcel 
number, provide a brief description, and call for bids three times on each parcel.  If 
there are no bids he will move to the next parcel number.  If there is a bid the 
Board will vote to accept the bid [the minimum bid is the lien amount] for each 
parcel separately. 
 
There were no bids submitted for the following parcels:  101-07-051; 101-07-
208; 201-08-008R; 201-09-019D; 201-10-034; 201-10-099; 206-10-068K; 206-19-
223A; 206-22-073; 207-05-002B; 207-06-079; 207-10-017C; 207-15-286.   
 
Two properties were sold and the Board issued a separate vote on each parcel, 
as follows: 



Page 2 of 8 

 

207-06-141 - Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously accepted a bid from Bidder #7 in the amount 
of $518.07, which is the lien amount. 
 
207-08-079 - Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously accepted a bid from Bidder #6 in the 
amount of $3,481.55, which is the lien amount. 
 
Chairman Pastor advised the two bidders to meet with Marian Sheppard, Clerk of 
the Board, after the meeting to further process the purchase transactions.   
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement for the establishment and maintenance of a Regional Mass 
Communication System between Pinal County, Gila County, Graham County 
and Greenlee County, which allows for the implementation of the Everbridge 
Mass Communication and Notification System in Gila County as well as the 
other counties named in the agreement.   
 
Michael O’Driscoll, Health and Emergency Services Division Director, stated that 
the Board of Supervisors approved joining the East Region which is comprised of 
Pinal, Gila, Graham, and Greenlee Counties in order to apply for a State Homeland 
Security Grant to purchase the Everbridge Mass Communication System 
(Everbridge).  The application was submitted by Pinal County Emergency 
Management.  The grant was awarded to Pinal County to be used in said East 
Region, and those funds were made available on January 1, 2016.  An 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) was prepared by Pinal County which identifies 
two working groups among the four counties; 1) a system utilization group with 
representatives from Law Enforcement, Fire and EMS (Emergency Medical 
Services) and Emergency Management to choose a preferred mass communication 
system and the applications of that system to be used in each county; and, 2) a 
technical committee which shall have representatives from Information 
Technology, and the Dispatch Center to work with the selected vendor for the 
mass communication system “build out” and implementation in each of the 
counties.  The IGA is to identify these two working groups in each of the counties. 
 
Chairman Pastor asked for clarification regarding the cost as stated in the two 
quotes attached to this agenda item and the terms of the IGA.  Mr. O’Driscoll 
stated that the $112,000 in the price quote represents the cost of implementation 
for the first year and is paid by the Homeland Security grant.  The following years 
would be at a cost of $18,000 to Gila County per year for three years.  The County 
may choose to opt out of this IGA each year.  The $18,000 annual fee is based on 
the number of households in Gila County and will not change if one of the other 
counties opts out of the IGA.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if Everbridge would help with network communication 
issues within the County.  Mr. O’Driscoll stated that Everbridge has the ability to 



Page 3 of 8 

 

assist with communication throughout the County even if the County network is 
down.  Everbridge works with the Federal Emergency Management Agency using 
cell phone towers to send messages to residents in the County when necessary.  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved an Intergovernmental Agreement for the 
establishment and maintenance of a Regional Mass Communication System 
between Pinal County, Gila County, Graham County and Greenlee County, which 
allows for the implementation of the Everbridge Mass Communication and 
Notification System in Gila County as well as the other counties named in the 
agreement.   
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the submission of an 
amendment to the Arizona Department of Emergency Management 2015 
Application for Emergency Management Performance Grant Funds to 
increase the grant amount by $30,000, from $160,000 to $190,000, of which 
the general fund match of $110,000 remains unchanged and the soft match 
of volunteer hours increases from $50,000 to $80,000 for the contract period 
7/1/15 to 6/30/16.   
 
Mr. O'Driscoll stated that there is a federal guideline that the County is utilizing 
for grant applications which allows the County to capture volunteer hours.  In 
doing so, over $30,000 worth of volunteer hours are reported to the Department of 
Emergency Management for a soft match and is commensurate with $30,000 in 
funding.  Ultimately, this increases the amount of the grant funding without 
increasing the general fund match amount for this grant.  Therefore, an 
amendment is required to request and receive the additional grant funding in the 
amount of $30,000.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the submission of an 
amendment to the Arizona Department of Emergency Management 2015 
Application for Emergency Management Performance Grant Funds. 
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 16-01-02 authorizing 
the disposal of an unnecessary public roadway being a portion of S. Burnham 
Street, Midland City, Official Map No. 48, Gila County Records; and 
authorizing the Chairman to execute and deliver in the name and under the 
seal of the County of Gila, quit claim deed conveying the abandoned roadway 
to Jarrett Amado.   
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, stated that on December 15, 2015, 
the Board of Supervisors accepted a bid in the amount of $35 from Jarrett Amado 
for the purchase of a portion of S. Burnham Street.  Mr. Amado’s bid met the 
minimum bid requirements of the current Gila County policy regarding 
abandonment of roadways in Gila County.  The resolution and quit claim deed 
have been prepared and execution of these, upon approval of the Board, would 
complete the conveyance of the unnecessary public roadway as described above to 
Mr. Amado.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 



Page 4 of 8 

 

Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution 16-01-02, and authorized 
the Chairman’s signature on the quit claim deed.  (A copy of the resolution is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 3 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the Board 
of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of the Health and Emergency Services Division's 2015 Multi-
Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan award from the Arizona Department of 
Emergency and Military Affairs in the amount of $30,000 federal share with a 
$10,000 non-federal match requirement. This funding will be used to review 
and update our existing Gila County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 
Plan which is intended to reduce the magnitude of future disasters 
throughout Gila County, while remaining compliant with federal 
requirements.  
 
B.  Approval of Amendment No. 5 to Professional Services Contract No. 
062813-Medical Examiner Services between Gila County and Mark A. 
Fischione, M.D., PLC, to increase the current contract amount by 
$10,000, from $110,000 for a new total contract amount of $120,000 for 
the contract term of January 7, 2015, to January 6, 2016.  
 
C.  Acknowledgment of the October 2015 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Recorder's Office.  
 
D.  Acknowledgment of the December 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
E.  Acknowledgment of the November 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 
F.  Acknowledgment of the December 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 
G.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of 
December 1, 2015, December 8, 2015, December 15, 2015, December 22, 
2015, and December 29, 2015.  
 
DECEMBER 1, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1. Jordan Reardon – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 11/22/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 09/01/14 
2.  Lauren Molzen – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Care Worker 
11/23/15 – Rabies Control Fund – DOH 11/02/15 



Page 5 of 8 

 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
3.  Mariah Campagna – From Sheriff’s Office – To Health and Emergency 
Services – From Detention Officer – To Community Health Specialist – 
12/07/15 – From General Fund – To Teen Pregnancy Prevention Services Fund 
– Replacing Chris Phillips 
REQUEST TO POST: 
4.  Health and Emergency Services – Animal Care Worker – Vacated by Lauren 
Molzen 
 
DECEMBER 8, 2015 
NEW HIRES: 
1.  Gerald Irish – Public Works – Construction Project Manager – 12/14/15 – 
Public Works Fund – Replacing Michael Gillette 
2.  Rubin Mays – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 12/14/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing Jason Fajardo  
3.  Jonica Flores – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 12/14/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing Jack Mathews 
4.  James Bonnie – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 12/14/15 – General Fund 
– Replacing Jacob Delecki 
5.  Marylyn Lee- Sheriff’s Office – Records Clerk – 12/14/15 – General Fund – 
Replacing Rose Holiday 
6.  Savanah Jewell – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 12/14/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing Margaret Meares 
7.  Samantha Trimble – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 12/14/15 – 
General Fund – Replacing Mary Charles 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
8.  Lieneke Mellema – Sheriff’s Office – Temporary Accounting Clerk Specialist – 
12/14/15 – General Fund 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
9.  Cassidy Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 12/22/15 – General 
Fund 
10.  Brittney Griego – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 12/15/15 – General 
Fund  
 
DECEMBER 15, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Donald Hayes III – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 12/02/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 11/09/15 
NEW HIRES: 
2.  Elliana Cabrera – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 12/21/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing Jordan Klabbatz 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
3.  Michael Scannell – Board of Supervisors – Deputy County Manager – 
01/28/16 – General Fund 



Page 6 of 8 

 

4.  Diane Buechner – Assessor’s Office – Assessor’s Aide – 12/29/15 – General 
Fund  
5.  Antonella Campos – Public Fiduciary – Public Fiduciary Services Specialist – 
01/13/16 – General Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
6.  Stephanie Chaidez – From Public Fiduciary – To Finance – From 
Administrative Clerk – To Buyer – 12/21/15 – General Fund – Replacing Joni 
Erwin 
REQUEST TO POST: 
7.  Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Senior – Vacated by Yvonne House 
8.  Public Fiduciary – Administrative Clerk – Vacated by Stephanie Chaidez  
 
DECEMBER 22, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Sabrina Falquez – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 12/27/15 – 
General Fund – DOH 02/23/15 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
2.  B. Todd Whitney – Health and Emergency Services – Emergency 
Management Communications Coordinator – 01/20/16 – General Fund 
3.  Lacey Mata – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 01/19/16 – General 
Fund 
4.  Raymond Armington – Public Works – Automotive Service Worker – 
12/30/15 – Public Works Fund 
5.  Dan McKeen – Superior Court – CASA Coordinator – 01/20/16 – Court 
Appointed Special Advocate Fund 
6.  Susan Aliprandini – School Superintendent’s Office – Account Clerk Senior – 
12/29/15 – General Fund  
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
7.  Amber Warden – From Sheriff’s Office – To Finance – From Executive 
Administrative Assistant – To Accountant Senior – 01/04/16 – General Fund – 
Replacing Stacie Allison 
8.  Kassandra Seaver – Recorder’s Office – From Recorder’s Clerk – To 
Recorder’s Clerk Senior – 12/16/15 – General Fund – Replacing Yvonne House 
9.  Eric Dawson – Probation – From Juvenile Detention Officer (.48) – To 
Juvenile Detention Officer – 12/28/15 – General Fund – Replacing Sabrina 
Falquez 
REQUEST TO POST: 
10.  Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – Vacated by Kassandra Seaver 
11.  Elections – Voter Outreach Coordinator – Vacated by Josephine Goode 
 
DECEMBER 29, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Josephine Goode – Elections – Voter Outreach Coordinator – 12/31/15 – 
General Fund – DOH 08/04/03 



Page 7 of 8 

 

2.  Megan Dillon – Sheriff’s Office – Public Health Nurse – 11/09/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 11/09/15 
3.  Arthur Decker – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 12/21/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 12/21/09 
4.  Leitha Griffin – Community Services – Administrative Assistant – 12/31/15 
– Various Funds – DOH 08/12/13 
NEW HIRES: 
5.  Jacob Berttunen – Globe Regional Justice Court – Accounting Clerk Senior 
– 01/11/16 – General Fund – Replacing Susan Williams 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
6.  Steven Sanders – Public Works – Public Works Director – 01/13/16 – Public 
Works Fund 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
7.  Michael Lemon – Health and Emergency Services – Environmental Health 
Specialist – 07/01/15 – Various Funds – Change in fund codes  
REQUEST TO POST: 
8.  Community Services – Administrative Assistant – Vacated by Leitha Griffin 
9.  Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – Vacated by Evelyn 
Guevera 
10.  Superior Court – Administrative Clerk Senior – Vacated by Melanie 
Sabbatino-Tackett  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 3A – 3G. 
 
Item 4 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to 
allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue within the 
jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss 
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant 
to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call 
to the public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may respond to 
criticism made by those who have addressed the Board, may ask staff to 
review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for 
further discussion and decision at a future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 5 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), 
members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager may present a 
brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken on information 
presented.  
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.  
 



Page 8 of 8 

 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:52 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board  



Page 1 of 11 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  January 5, 2016 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; and, 
Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board. 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Robert Hickman led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Jefferson Dalton delivered the invocation. 
 
Item 2 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to issue a recommendation to the 
Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control regarding Gila County 
Order No. LL-15-06, a new Series 12 restaurant license application 
submitted by Mark Allen Moppin for M&M Reno Creek Cafe located at 270 
S. Old Hwy. 188, Tonto Basin, Arizona.  
 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, advised that the County has an internal 
process whereby the Health Department and Building Safety Department 
review the application to determine if there are any County-related permitting 
issues, and the Treasurer reviews the application to determine if the applicant 
is current on paying property taxes for any property that is owned in Gila 
County.  She reported that there are no County related issues, and that she 
has not received any letters of objection to this application.  Chairman Pastor 
opened the public hearing; however, there were no comments, so he closed the 
public hearing and asked for a motion from the Board.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 



Page 2 of 11 

 

voted to recommend that the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and 
Control approve the application. 
 
Item 3 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider approving a Memorandum 
of Understanding establishing a partnership between the Industrial 
Development Authority of Gila County and Gila County government to 
make application and promote the designation of the Central Arizona 
Transformation Corridor Promise Zone.  
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, advised that this agenda item was continued 
from the Board’s December 15, 2015, meeting in order to allow Jefferson 
Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief, to review a 
memorandum sent to the County from the Industrial Development Authority’s 
legal counsel.  At the December 15th Board meeting, Mr. Dalton explained his 
concerns with the Memorandum of Understanding and advised that he would 
not approve the agreement as to form.  Supervisor Marcanti commented that 
he strongly supports this endeavor as it will help the San Carlos Apache Tribe, 
other entities and Gila County as a whole to receive the Promise Zone 
designation.  Chairman Pastor called upon Linda Gross to speak as she had 
submitted a public participation form on this agenda item.  Ms. Gross stated 
that as a local business owner and a person who is an advocate for economic 
growth in the community, she expressed her support of this proposed 
designation.   
 
Upon motion Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved the Memorandum of Understanding between Gila 
County and the Industrial Development Authority of Gila County. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider adopting an Order to call 
for a Special Election to be held May 17, 2016, to elect a new Board of 
Directors for the Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement District. 
 
This agenda item was continued from the Board’s December 15, 2015, meeting.  
Eric Mariscal, Elections Department Director, advised that should the Board of 
Supervisors decide to adopt this Order to call for a May 17th election of the 
Solitude Trails Domestic Water Improvement District (STDWID), the deadline is 
January 18, 2016.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that it is important for the 
Board to adopt this Order so that a special election can be held on May 17th to 
elect a new Board of Directors for the STDWID.  Chairman Pastor wanted to 
ensure that the Board of Supervisors would schedule a community meeting 
with members of the STDWID to which Mr. McDaniel assured the Board that a 
meeting would be scheduled in the near future.  He advised that County staff is 



Page 3 of 11 

 

currently working with members of the STDWID to obtain all of the necessary 
data to ensure that the STDWID continues to operate effectively and efficiently 
until a new board can be seated. 
 
Chairman Pastor called upon Linda O’Dell, Gila County School Superintendent, 
to speak as she had submitted a public participation form on this agenda item.  
Ms. O’Dell advised that she is in support of the Board adopting the Order.  
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously adopted the Order.  (A copy of the Order is permanently 
on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept the Victims of Crimes Act 
grant submitted by the Court Appointed Special Advocate Program of Gila 
County.  
 
Jonathan Bearup, Deputy Court Administrator, introduced this agenda item 
and asked Dan McKeen, Court Appointed Special Advocate (C.A.S.A.) 
Coordinator, to present information on the C.A.S.A. program.  Mr. McKeen 
advised that there are 4 C.A.S.A. volunteers in southern Gila County who serve 
101 children in out-of-home placements; whereas, there are 14 C.A.S.A. 
volunteers in northern Gila County who serve 56 children in out-of-home 
placements.  He stated that the County needs to have an enhanced C.A.S.A. 
volunteer presence in southern Gila County, so that is the reason it is so 
important to continue to find funding for the C.A.S.A. program, such as this 
grant award.   
 
Each Supervisor provided comments and offered their support to help this very 
important program, and they thanked Mr. Bearup and Mr. McKeen for the 
presentation of information.  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously accepted the Victims of Crimes Act grant award. 
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the on-going 
Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County Superior Court 
Administration and the Arizona Department of Economic Security to 
provide additional resources that facilitate access and visitation for non-
custodial parents and their children. 
 
Mr. Bearup advised that the Arizona Revised Statutes allow the Superior Court 
to enter into Intergovernmental Agreements (IGAs); however, the Board of 
Supervisors’ policy specifies that all IGAs need to be presented to the Board for 
approval.  He added that, in the past, this particular IGA was not presented to 



Page 4 of 11 

 

the Board, but he felt it was important to follow County policy.  Mr. Bearup 
explained the services provided with these grant funds.  He added that the 
reporting requirements for this grant are very stringent; however, because the 
Superior Court met all of the requirements, the Court qualified for 
supplemental money for a total of $11,000.  This IGA has been in place for the 
past two years.  Vice-Chairman Martin asked Mr. Bearup if there was any way 
of knowing whether or not mediation works during divorce proceedings and Mr. 
Bearup replied that the Superior Court is able to track successes and failures.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved this IGA between Gila County Superior Court 
Administration and the Arizona Department of Economic Security. 
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Proposals No. 110615-1 - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 
Program Education Support Services.  
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, advised that the Board of 
Supervisors previously authorized the Health Department to submit a grant 
application and subsequently accept a grant award (Grant No. ADHS15-
00004836) in the amount of $200,638 to provide AzNN (Arizona Nutrition 
Network), SNAP-Ed (Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education), 
and Location Implementation Services.  In order to meet grant requirements, 
Gila County is seeking contract support services for the administration of food 
systems and active living services in alignment with these programs.  This 
Request for Proposals (RFP) will allow Gila County to contract with an Arizona-
based organization employing a Registered Dietitian Nutritionist. 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously authorized the advertisement of RFP No. 110615-1. 
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 16-01-01 
authorizing the disposal of an unnecessary public roadway being a portion 
of S. Marion Canyon (aka Miami Street) adjacent to Lots 22, 23, and 
24, Block 43, as shown on Miami Map No. 3, Plat Map No. 25, Gila County 
Records, Gila County, Arizona and authorize the Chairman of the Board of 
Supervisors to execute and deliver in the name and under the seal of 
County of Gila, a quit claim deed conveying the abandoned roadway to 
John R. Stemm and Barbara J. Stemm. 
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, advised that previously the 
Board of Supervisors accepted a bid from John and Barbara Stemm for the 
purchase of the property.  This request is for the Board to adopt the resolution 
which authorizes the Board Chairman to sign the quit claim deed. 



Page 5 of 11 

 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 16-01-01 and authorized the 
Chairman’s signature on the quit claim deed.  (A copy of the Resolution is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental 
Agreement No. 110415-Economic Development Grant between Gila 
County and the City of Globe, whereby the County will disburse $20,000 
to the Globe Active Adult Center to assist in providing and delivering 
meals to senior citizens in the community through the Meals on Wheels 
program; and further the Board determines this is for the benefit of the 
public and will improve or enhance the economic welfare of the 
inhabitants of Gila County.  
 
Mr. McDaniel advised that the Board of Supervisors has authorized the 
contribution of funds to the Globe Active Adult Center for many years as it is a 
very worthy program.  The Center receives funding from other sources; 
however, Mr. McDaniel stated that additional funds are needed in order for the 
program to continue to work and be successful. 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved Intergovernmental Agreement No. 110415-
Economic Development Grant.  
 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of the State of 
Arizona, State Procurement Office Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD 
Crane Builders, Inc. for the construction of interior improvements, 
exterior improvements and all associated facets of construction on the 
Copper Administration Building in the amount of $2,271,632.21 
with estimated completion 240 days from the date of the "Notice to 
Proceed" issued by the County to SD Crane Builders. 
 
Mr. Hessenius advised that on October 6, 2015, the Board approved the job 
order contract method of construction for this project.  He stated that since 
that time he and members of the County’s project team have met with 
representatives of SD Crane Builders, Inc.  Mr. Hessenius recognized members 
of the team that were present.  The Board members held a brief discussion on 
the details of the project and completion date, which is scheduled for August 1, 
2016.   
 
Mr. McDaniel recognized and thanked Michael Scannell, Deputy County 
Manager, for his leadership efforts to get this project realigned.  Mr. Scannell 
thanked Mr. McDaniel for the compliment and passed on that recognition and 
gratitude to team members.  



Page 6 of 11 

 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved the use of the State of Arizona, State 
Procurement Office Contract No. ADSPO12-013788 with SD Crane Builders, 
Inc. 
 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the following six 
Countywide policies to be included in the Countywide Policy Manual that 
are currently Merit System Rules and Policies:  BOS-HRS-120 Standards of 
Conduct (replaces Rule 6); BOS-HRS-215 Probationary Employment Period 
(replaces Rule 19); BOS-HRS-405 Performance Appraisal (replaces Rule 
20); BOS-HRS-610 Disciplinary Action (replaces Rule 21); BOS-HRS-615 
Grievance Process [replaces Rule 22(a)]; and, BOS-HRS-625 Personnel 
Commission (replaces Rule 3). 
 
Mr. McDaniel advised that the Countywide Policy Committee was formed 
approximately 3-4 years ago to review new or existing policies being presented 
to the Board of Supervisors.  One of the efforts is to take the existing Gila 
County Merit System Rules and Policies and convert them to policies; all six of 
the policies being presented are currently Merit System Rules.  He called upon 
Shelley McPherson, Human Resources Department Director, and she briefly 
reviewed the changes that were proposed.  She added that the Board previously 
met in a work session at which time each policy was reviewed and discussed in 
detail with the Board. 
 
Supervisor Marcanti wanted to know the procedure for filling vacancies on the 
Gila County Personnel Commission.  After a brief discussion, it was decided 
that the policy on Boards, Commissions and Committees (BCCs) (Policy No. 
BOS-COB-002) should be revised to include a process for the selection of new 
members or reappointment of members to a BCC.  Vice-Chairman Martin also 
noted that the Board members should be given additional advance notice when 
there is a vacancy on a BCC.  Mr. McDaniel added that it is the responsibility 
of the Staff Liaison, which is the department head, to notify Board members of 
any expiring terms of office for existing members or vacancies. 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved the following six Countywide policies to be 
included in the Countywide Policy Manual that are currently Merit System 
Rules and Policies:  BOS-HRS-120 Standards of Conduct (replaces Rule 6); 
BOS-HRS-215 Probationary Employment Period (replaces Rule 19); BOS-HRS-
405 Performance Appraisal (replaces Rule 20); BOS-HRS-610 Disciplinary 
Action (replaces Rule 21); BOS-HRS-615 Grievance Process [replaces Rule 
22(a)]; and, BOS-HRS-625 Personnel Commission (replaces Rule 3). 
 



Page 7 of 11 

 

ITEM 4 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of a Memorandum of Agreement between Tonto Apache Tribe 
and the Gila County Sheriff's Office regarding the Arizona Criminal 
Justice Information System Holder of Record Agreement.  
 
B.  Approval of Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No. 16-LE-
11031200-004 replacing Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004 between the 
Gila County Sheriff's Office and the U.S. Department of Agriculture, 
Forest Service in the amount of $74,400 for the performance period of 
December 31, 2015, through December 31, 2016.  
 
C.  Approval of the adjustment to the appointment of John Perlman as 
Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore, specifically, the termination of 
appointment in the Globe Regional Justice Court and the affirmation of 
appointment in the Payson Regional Justice Court.  
 
D.  Approval of FY 2016 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG 
No. 2016-004 between the Gila County Attorney's Office and the Arizona 
Attorney General's Office in the amount of $33,890 to cover the existing 
salary and employee-related expenses for a full-time advocate, with no 
cash match funds required, for the period July 1, 2015, through June 30, 
2016.  
 
E.  Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. ADES14-055408) between Gila County and the Arizona 
Department of Economic Security which will decrease the un-obligated 
fund balances and will change this contract end date to December 31, 
2016, all of which pertain to funding for the former Gila/Pinal Counties 
Workforce Investment Area.  
 
F.  Approval of Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) Community 
Development Block Grant Contract No. 108-15 Closeout Report to finalize 
the contract between the ADOH and the Gila County Division of 
Community Services, Housing Services, which will successfully end the 
contract and ensure that Gila County Housing Services has met all 
requirements of said contract.  
 
G.  Approval of Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) Community 
Development Block Grant Contract No. 103-15 Closeout Report to finalize 
the contract between the ADOH and the Gila County Division of 



Page 8 of 11 

 

Community Services, Housing Services, which will successfully end the 
contract and ensure that Gila County Housing Services has met all 
requirements of said contract.  
 
H.  Approval of revised Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (Contract No. ADES15-089113) between the Arizona 
Department of Economic Security and Gila County Division of Community 
Services, Community Action Program, revising the Itemized Service 
Budget for Case Management and Community Services whereby the 
cumulative reimbursement ceiling has been increased from $451,731 to 
$477,916 for the period July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.  
 
I.  Acknowledgment of the November 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  
 
J.  Acknowledgment of the December 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
K.  Acknowledgment of the November 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
L.  Acknowledgment of the November 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 
M.  Approval of the November 24, 2015, December 1, 2015, and December 
15, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.  
 
N.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of November 23, 2015, 
through November 27, 2015; November 30, 2015, through December 04, 
2015; and, December 07, 2015, through December 11, 2015.  
 
O.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
December 22, 2015, December 29, 2015, and January 5, 2016.  
 
December 22, 2015 
 
$1,635,143.41 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 274122 
through 274261.   
 
December 29, 2015 
 
$266,313.99 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 274262 
through 274308.  



Page 9 of 11 

 

January 5, 2016 
 
$1,230,973.62 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 274309 
through 274417.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Chairman Pastor asked for a motion to move Consent Agenda action item 
number 4-O to the regular agenda for discussion and action.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board voted 
unanimously to move Consent Agenda action item number 4-O to the regular 
agenda. 
 
Chairman Pastor called upon Mr. Hessenius to explain the types of financial 
reports that are associated with this agenda item.  Mr. Hessenius explained 
that the Finance Division compiles two different weekly financial reports that 
are available for the Board of Supervisors’ review.  A hard copy of one report 
contains detailed information regarding payments made by the County for a 
weekly reporting period.  The report that is attached to the meeting agenda 
contains a condensed version of the hard copy report as follows:  check 
number, payment date, payee name, and transaction amount.  Mr. Hessenius 
apologized to the Board for not providing up to date reports during the last 
couple of months; however, he explained the reason the reports have not been 
provided to the Board in a timely manner is because his office is currently 
under-staffed.  After a brief discussion, it was agreed that the weekly financial 
reports would be immediately brought up to date by the Finance Division and 
provided to the Board members.  It was also agreed that weekly financial 
reports would not be placed on a Board meeting agenda for Board approval 
until the Board has had an opportunity to review all of them in advance of the 
meeting. 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action item number 4-O. 
 
Vice-Chairman Martin made a motion to approve the remaining Consent 
Agenda action item numbers 4-A through 4-N, which was seconded by 
Supervisor Marcanti.  Before the Chairman had an opportunity to ask for the 
vote, Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief, advised 
that he did not approve as to form Consent Agenda action item numbers 4-A 
and 4-B and he offered to explain his reasons for not approving them.  
Chairman Pastor advised that the official written minutes of this meeting would 
reflect that Mr. Dalton did not approve as to form Consent Agenda action item 
numbers 4-A and 4-B due to some legal concerns Mr. Dalton had with 
language contained in the agreements.  Chairman Pastor then asked for a vote 



Page 10 of 11 

 

on the motion; all Board members voted in favor of approving Consent Agenda 
action item numbers 4-A through 4-N.  
 
ITEM 5 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
   
There were no comments from the public. 
 
ITEM 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented.  
 
Each Board member presented information on current events.   Mr. McDaniel 
advised that he did not have any new information to present. 
 
ITEM 7 - EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (The Board of Supervisors may 
vote to go into executive session on one or all of the items listed in this 
section.  No action will be taken by the Board while in executive session.)  
 
A.  Move to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A) (3) 
and 38-431.03(A) (4) in order to receive legal advice from its attorney 
regarding a Notice of Claim from Carson Construction regarding the Pine 
Creek Canyon Road Construction Project and to discuss or consult with 
the attorney of the public body in order to consider its position and 
instruct its attorney regarding the public body's position in order to avoid 
or resolve litigation.  Then, after executive session has concluded move to 
direct the County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in executive 
session.  
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously voted to go into executive session at 11:20 a.m. to address 
agenda item number 7-A.   
 



Page 11 of 11 

 

Chairman Pastor reconvened the regular meeting at 11:50 a.m. and asked for a 
motion on agenda item number 7-A.  For the record:  Vice-Chairman Martin 
had an appointment, so she was not present for the remainder of the meeting. 
Supervisor Marcanti made a motion to proceed as directed by the County 
Attorney while in executive session with regard to a Notice of Claim from 
Carson Construction regarding the Pine Creek Canyon Road Construction 
Project.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:51 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board  



   
ARF-3551     Consent Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  
Reporting
Period:

01/05/16, 01/12/16, 01/19/16, and 01/26/16

Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.,

Human Resources Department

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of January 5, 2016, January 12,
2016, January 19, 2016, and January 26, 2016. 

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of
January 5, 2016, January 12, 2016, January 19, 2016, and January 26,
2016. 

Attachments
HR Summary Report
01/05/16 Human Resources Report
01/12/16 Human Resources Report
01/19/16 Human Resources Report
01/26/16 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐16 Feb‐16 Mar‐16 Apr‐16 May‐16 Jun‐16 Jul‐16 Aug‐16 Sep‐16 Oct‐16 Nov‐16 Dec‐16

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES 11 11

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 8 8

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 1 1

NEW VOLUNTEERS 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 5 5

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 6 6

OTHER ACTIONS 5 5

REQUEST TO POST 7 7

  Total Transactions 43 43 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JANUARY 5, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. David Buffington – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Lead – 02/07/16 – Facilities 
Management Fund – DOH 02/05/96 

2. Troy Sessions – Sheriff’s Office – Temporary Emergency Response – 09/30/15 – General Fund – DOH 
05/17/12 

3. Arthur Salcido – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff Sgt. – 12/31/15 – General Fund – DOH 12/03/85 
 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

4. Robert Gould – Community Development – Temporary Planner – 01/04/16 – General Fund  
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Austin Payne – Public Works – Automotive Service Worker – 01/06/16 – Public Works Fund 
 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

6. Scott Buzan – Community Development – From Chief Building Official – To Community Development 
Site Supervisor – 12/28/15 – General Fund – Temporary assignment  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

7. Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Lead – Vacated by David Buffington  
8. Superior Court – Part-Time Bailiff  

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JANUARY 12, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Paul Curzon – Assessor’s Office – Mapping Technician – 01/07/16 – General Fund – DOH 11/02/15 
2. Melanie Sabbatino-Tackett – Superior Court – Administrative Clerk Senior – 12/10/15 – Court 

Appointed Special Advocate(.50)/Court Improvement Project(.50) Funds – DOH 11/30/15 
3. Austin Stratton – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 01/05/16 – General Fund – DOH 03/23/15 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

4. John Bacon – Public Works – Part-Time Custodian(.85) – 01/19/16 – Facilities Management Fund – 
Replacing Rebecca Taylor 

5. Amy Korth – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – 01/25/16 – General Fund – Replacing Kassandra 
Seaver 

6. Victora Waynick – Superior Court – Administrative Clerk Senior – 01/11/16 – General Fund  
7. Jace Johnson – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 01/19/16 – Facilities Management 

Fund – Replacing Jerry M. Moore 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

8. Patti Dremler – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 01/08/16 – Public Works Fund  
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

9. Charles Turney – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – 01/19/16 – 
Prescription Drug Overdose Prevent Fund – New grant funded position 

10. Duncan Rose – County Attorney’s Office – From Deputy County Attorney Senior – To Deputy County 
Attorney Principal – 01/11/16 – General Fund – Replacing Travis Shield 

11. Jessica Oortman – County Attorney’s Office – From Deputy County Attorney – To Deputy County 
Attorney Senior – 01/11/16 – From Drug Prosecution Grant Fund – To General Fund – Replacing 
Duncan Rose 

12. Calley Anderson – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney – 01/11/16 – From General 
Fund – To Drug Prosecution Grant Fund – Replacing Jessica Oortman 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

13. Sylvia Hernandez – Probation – From Probation Operations Manager – To Chief Administrative Officer 
– 01/11/16 – General Fund 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

14. County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney – Vacated by Calley Anderson 
15. Assessor’s Office – Mapping Technician – Vacated by Paul Curzon 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JANUARY 19, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Brent Miller – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 01/05/16 – General Fund – DOH 02/13/12 
2. Allen Oswalt – Public Works – Public Works Roads Supervisor – 04/03/16 – Public Works Fund – 

DOH 07/25/94 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

3. Mary Charles – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 01/25/16 – General Fund – Replacing Jordan 
Reardon  

4. Donald Hayes III – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 01/25/16 – General Fund – Replacing Mariah 
Campagna 

5. Kristy Johnson – Public Fiduciary – Administrative Clerk – 01/25/16 – General Fund – Replacing 
Stephanie Chaidez 

6. Tracey Helgeson – Sheriff’s Office – Public Health Nurse – 01/25/16 – General Fund – Replacing 
Jessica Madrid 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

7. Thomas Dando – Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Operations Worker Senior – 01/19/16 – 
Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – Personal leave of absence 

8. Brenda Cova – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 07/01/15 – From Diversion 
Intake(.75)/Juvenile Standards Probation(.25) Funds – To Diversion Intake(.50)/Juvenile Standards 
Probation(.50) Funds – Change in fund code percentages 

9. Kendall Rhyne – Probation/Superior Court – Chief PO/Court Administrator – 01/11/16 – Various Funds 
– Change in fund codes 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

10. Sheriff’s Office – Property and Evidence Custodian – Vacated by Marcus Teague 
11. Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – Vacated by Charles Turney 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JANUARY 26, 2016 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Howard Shapiro – Sheriff’s Office – Special Investigator (.48) – 01/15/16 – General Fund – DOH 
07/05/10 

2. Clifton Mitchell – Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Operator Worker Senior – 02/21/16 – 
Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 07/21/08 

3. James Gibson – Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Operator Worker Senior – 01/30/16 – Recycling 
and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 05/03/12 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

4. Susan Pontel – Assessor’s Office – Cartography GIS Analyst – 01/27/16 – General Fund  
5. Adela Valenzuela – Public Fiduciary – Finance Specialist – 02/24/16 – General Fund  
6. Kevan Ford – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 02/17/16 – CAP(.50)/GEST(.50) 

Funds 
7. Shealene Stidham – Recorder’s Office – Voter Registration Coordinator – 01/13/16 – General Fund  

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

8. John Digman – Public Works – From Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – To Road 
Maintenance and Equipment Operator Senior – 02/01/16 – Public Works Fund – Replacing David 
Slaughter  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

9. Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Operator Worker Senior – Vacated by Clifton Mitchell 
 



   
ARF-3554     Consent Agenda Item      4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  
Reporting
Period:

December 18, 2015; December 25, 2015; and January
01, 2016

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 12-18-15; 12-25-15; and 01-01-16.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of December 14, 2015, through
December 18, 2015; December 21, 2015, through December 25, 2015;
and, December 28, 2015, through January 01, 2016.

Attachments
Report for County Manager approved contracts for Weeks Ending
12-18-15, 12-25-15 and 01-01-16
Contract Agreement for installation to floor upgrade
Service Agreement No. 121415-Mountain Retreat Builders
Service Agreement No. 121215-Mountain Retreat Builders
Service Agreement No. 121215-7-Mountain Retreat Builders
Authorization to Utilize State Contract-1309 S. South Street
Authorization to utilize State Contract-5709 S. Russell Road
Service Agreement No. 120915-DSI Recycling Systems, Inc.
Government Obligation Contract-3349111
Service Agreement No. 121215-8-Noble Building
Service Agreement No. 121215-4-Noble Building
Service Agreement No. 121215-5-Noble Building
Service Agreement No. 121215-6-Noble Building
Service Agreement No. 120215-1-Rodriguez Constructions



Modification No. 003-Federal Highway Administration
Service Agreement No. 120215-Earthquest Plumbing
Support & Maintenance Agreement 38781CONSVR-HOV Services



  
Page 1 

 
  

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
December 14, 2015 thru December 18, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

GSA Contract 
GS07F7199L 

Modular Solutions 

 

 
Contract Agreement for 

Installation to Floor 
Upgrade 

 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$40,175.90 
 

 
12-14-15 to 03-31-16 

 
12-14-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall perform the installation 
of the floor upgrade so the building will 
support the 100# per Sq. Ft. that will be 
required to meet the stakeholder needs. 

 
121415 

Mountain Retreat 
Builders 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

121415 
Weatherization Project 

HH#10517  
 

 

 
$7,750.00  

 

 
12-16-15 to 06-30-16 

 
12-16-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall provide all materials 
and labor to blow fiberglass into open 
attic, remove and replace defective 
wiring in attic, install switch to turn 
heater on, patch holes, seal ductwork, 
seal windows, weatherstrip door, replace 
hot water heater and stove, for the 
homeowner.  
 

 
121215 

Mountain Retreat 
Builders 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

121215 
URRD Project HH#9072  

 

 

 
$2,875.00  

 

 
12-16-15 to 06-30-16 

 
12-16-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall provide all materials 
and labor to remove existing cooler and 
install new 3500cfm with metal stand on 
concrete pad, add insulation into hallway 
ceiling area only, add drywall to ceiling in 
hallway and add one coat of white paint 
over new area only, for the homeowner. 
 

 
121215-7 

Mountain Retreat 
Builders 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

121215-7 
Weatherization Project 

HH#10549  
 

 

 
$7,500.00  

 

 
12-16-15 to 06-30-16 

 
12-16-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall provide all materials 
and labor to seal ductwork, infiltration, 
weatherstrip door, and install ADA ramp, 
for the homeowner. 
 

 
ADSPO12-033368 

Western Technologies  
 

 

 
Authorization to Utilize 

State Contract for 
Environmental Consulting 

 
$2,194.38  

 

 
12-16-15 to 01-31-16 

 
12-16-15 

 
Expires 

 
County staff would like to commence the 
demolition process of the recently 
purchased property at 1309 S. South 
Street.  Asbestos testing will need to be 
conducted prior to the demolition 
beginning. 



  
Page 2 

 
  

December 14, 2015 thru December 18, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

ADSPO12-033368 
Western Technologies  

 

 

 
Authorization to Utilize 

State Contract for 
Environmental Consulting 

 
$2,234.38  

 

 
12-16-15 to 01-31-16 

 
12-16-15 

 
Expires 

 
County staff would like to proceed with 
the process of selling the property at 
5709 S. Russell Road.  An environmental 
testing for asbestos and lead is required 
before that process can begin. 
 

 
120915 

DSI Recycling Systems, 
Inc.  

 

 

 
Contract No. 120915 

Replace Waste Oil Furnace 
in Gas Shop at Star Valley, 

AZ 
 

 

 
$8,995.00 

 
12-16-15 to 01-15-16 

 
12-16-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall provide all materials 
and labor necessary to replace various 
components in a waste oil heater in the 
gas shop in Star Valley, to resolve safety 
issues from a cracked heat exchanger.  
 

 
3349111 

KS StateBank 

 
Contract No. 3349111 

Government Obligation 
Contract 

 

 

 
$7,791.48 plus 

tax 
 

 
36 months from date 

of delivery 

 
12-16-15 

 
Expires 

 
Purchase of one new BizHub C554e 
copier for the Gila County Recorder’s 
Office. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
Page 3 

 
  

 
 
December 21, 2015 thru December 25, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

121215-8 
Noble Building, LLC 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

121215-8 
URRD Project HH#6008  

 

 

 
$1,630.00  

 

 
12-23-15 to 06-30-16 

 
12-23-15 

 
Expires 

 
Scope of work to include, but not limited 
to, repair flooring under water heater, 
clean and prime water heater walls, 
repair broken glass window, remove 
existing chimney pipe and patch roof and 
ceiling where chimney was removed. 
 

 
121215-4 

Noble Building, LLC 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

121215-4 
Weatherization Project 

HH#10548  
 

 

 
$6,090.00  

 

 
12-23-15 to 06-30-16 

 
12-23-15 

 
Expires 

 
Scope of work to include, but not limited 
to, install pellet stove, general repairs, 
blown duct insulation, fiberglass belly 
insulation-floor, seal furnace cabinet, 
repair ductwork, install new window 
cooler. 
 

 
121215-5 

Noble Building, LLC 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

121215-5 
Weatherization Project 

HH#7829  
 

 

 
$3,425.00  

 

 
12-23-15 to 06-30-16 

 
12-23-15 

 
Expires 

 
Scope of work to include, but not limited 
to, installing thermostat, install case of 
filters, repair insulation belly, seal 
ductwork, install correct room vents, 
weatherstrip doors infiltration, replace 
exterior water heater wood door, and 
repair defective skirting. 
 

 
121215-6 

Noble Building, LLC 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

121215-6 
Weatherization Project 

HH#10550  
 

 

 
$1,270.00  

 

 
12-23-15 to 06-30-16 

 
12-23-15 

 
Expires 

 
Scope of work to include, but not limited 
to, seal ducts, seal furnace cabinet 
(infiltration), replace gas flex line to 
furnace, install thermostat. 
 

 
120215-1 
Rodriguez 

Constructions 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

120215-1 
Re-Shingle Building at 

Fairgrounds  
 

 

 
$5,418.24 

 

 
12-23-15 to 01-31-16 

 
12-23-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall provide all materials 
and labor necessary to re-shingle the 
roof of a 2003 double-wide modular at 
the Fairgrounds and re-paper the porch 
portion. 
 

 



  
Page 4 

 
  

 

December 21, 2015 thru December 25, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

Modification No. 003 
Federal Highway 
Administration 

Federal Lands Highway 

 

 
Modification No. 003 to 
Federal Lands Highway 

Agreement No. DTFH68-
13-E-00043 

 
 

 

 
N/A 

 

 
07-01-13 to 04-30-16 

 

 
12-23-15 

 
Expires 

 
On July 01, 2013, Gila County entered 
into an agreement with the Federal 
Highway Admin, Central Federal Lands 
Highway Division to construct two 
bridges on the Houston Mesa Road and 
one bridge on the Control Road.  The 
current performance period will expire 
on 12-31-15.  Modification No. 003 will 
extend the performance period to April 
30, 2016, with no cost modifications. 
 

 
120215 

Earthquest Plumbing 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

120215 
Verify Septic System at 
5709 S. Russell Road, 

Globe, AZ 
 

 

 
$950.00 

 

 
12-23-15 to 01-31-16 

 
12-23-15 

 
Expires 

 
Prior to selling the house at 5709 S. 
Russell Road, the County needs to 
determine if the septic/leach field is 
working. 

 
 
 
December 28, 2015 thru January 01, 2016 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

38781CONSVR 
HOV Services 

 

 
Support & Maintenance 

Agreement 
 
 

 

 
$860.00 

 

 
01-19-16 to 01-17-17 

 

 
12-29-15 

 
Expires 

 
Support and maintenance agreement for 
the Minolta RP603Z Microfilm Reader 
Printer, and Minolta FC5 Fiche Carrier. A 
microfilm reader for the Recorder’s 
Office. 

 

























































jsgroi
Typewritten Text
	ATTACHMENT "A" TO SERVICE AGREEMENT NO. 121215-7					PAGE 1 OF 4



jsgroi
Typewritten Text

jsgroi
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT "A" TO SERVICE AGREEMENT NO. 121215-7			PAGE 2 OF 4



jsgroi
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT "A" TO SERVICE AGREEMENT NO. 121215-7			PAGE 3 OF 4



jsgroi
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT "A" TO SERVICE AGREEMENT NO. 121215-7			PAGE 4 OF 4















































































































jsgroi
Typewritten Text
	ATTACHMENT "A" TO SERVICE AGREEMENT NO. 10548				   PAGE 1 OF 2































































































   
ARF-3588     Consent Agenda Item      4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  
Reporting
Period:

January 4-10, 2016; January 11-17, 2016; and January
18-24, 2016

Submitted By: Laurie Kline,
Deputy Clerk,
Clerk of the
Board of
Supervisors

Information
Subject
Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of January
4-10, 2016; January 11-17, 2016; and January 18-24, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of January
4-10, 2016; January 11-17, 2016; and January 18-24, 2016.

Attachments
January 18-24, 2016
January 11-17, 2016
January 04-10, 2016







































































































































































































   

ARF-3562     Executive Session Item      7. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  

Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead, County Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2014-15 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2014-2015 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Continental Energy, LLC v. Gila County, TX2015-000969 Request for Waiver of Service
and a Request to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County in this
matter. 

Background Information
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has received a request for waiver of service from
an attorney representing Continental Energy, LLC, an Arizona limited liability
company.  The request is to waive service of a complaint filed in Arizona Tax Court.  If
the Board decides not to waive service, the attorney representing Continental Energy,
LLC has stated an intention to have the County served formally and then petition the
Court to assess the County the costs associated with that service.

Assuming the Board agrees to waive service, the Board of Supervisors will also need to
direct its counsel regarding whether or how to defend against the action.

The Attorney General's Office has offered to represent Gila County along with the other
counties named in this lawsuit. 

Evaluation
The Board may vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3)
to receive legal advice on this item and pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) to instruct
its attorney regarding whether or how to defend against the action and if they choose
to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County. 

Conclusion
The Board should decide whether to waive service of the summons and complaint in
this action and should direct its attorney as to whether it should be turned over to the
Attorney General's Office for future proceedings.

Recommendation
N/A



N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S.
§  38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) regarding a Request for Waiver of Service for
Continental Energy, LLC v. Gila County, TX2015-000969, and a request to allow the
Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County in this matter.  After the Regular
Meeting has been reconvened, move to direct the County Attorney's Office to proceed
as directed in the executive session regarding this agenda item.  (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments



   

ARF-3566     Executive Session Item      7. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  

Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead, County Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2014-15 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2014-2015 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Continental Energy, LLC v. Gila County, TX2015-000950 Request for Waiver of Service
and a Request to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County in this
matter. 

Background Information
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has received a request for waiver of service from
an attorney representing Continental Energy, LLC, an Arizona limited liability
company.  The request is to waive service of a complaint filed in Arizona Tax Court.  If
the Board decides not to waive service, the attorney representing Continental Energy,
LLC has stated an intention to have the County served formally and then petition the
Court to assess the County the costs associated with that service.

Assuming the Board agrees to waive service, the Board of Supervisors will also need to
direct its counsel regarding whether or how to defend against the action.

The Attorney General's Office has offered to represent Gila County along with the other
counties named in this lawsuit. 

Evaluation
The Board may vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3)
to receive legal advice on this item and pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) to instruct
its attorney regarding whether or how to defend against the action and if they choose
to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County. 

Conclusion
The Board should decide whether to waive service of the summons and complaint in
this action and should direct its attorney as to whether it should be turned over to the
Attorney General's Office for future proceedings. 

Recommendation
N/A



N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S.
§  38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) regarding a Request for Waiver of Service for
Continental Energy, LLC v. Gila County, TX2015-000950, and a request to allow the
Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County in this matter.   After the Regular
Meeting has been reconvened, move to direct the County Attorney's Office to proceed
as directed in the executive session regarding this agenda item.  (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments



   

ARF-3567     Executive Session Item      7. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  

Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead, County Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2014-2015 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County in this matter
of Constellation Solar Arizona, LLC v. Gila County TX 2015-000112.

Background Information
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has received a Complaint and Notice of Appeal of
Property Valuation and Summons from an attorney representing Constellation Solar
Arizona LLC, an Delaware.

The Attorney General's Office has offered to represent Gila County along with the other
counties named in this lawsuit. 

The Board of Supervisors will need to direct its counsel regarding whether or how to
defend against the action and if the Board chooses to allow the Attorney General's
Office to represent Gila County.

Evaluation
The Board may vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3)
to receive legal advice on this item and pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) to instruct
its attorney regarding whether or how to defend against the action and if the Board
chooses to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County.

Conclusion
The Board should direct its attorney as to whether this case should be turned over to
the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County. 

Recommendation
The Board should direct its attorney as to whether this case should be turned over to
the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County. 

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S.
§  38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) regarding a request to allow the Attorney
General's Office to represent Gila County for Constellation Solar Arizona, LLC v. Gila
County, TX 2015-000112.  After the Regular Meeting has been reconvened, move to
direct the County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in the executive session
regarding this agenda item.  (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments



   

ARF-3569     Executive Session Item      7. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  

Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead, County Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2014-2015 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County in this matter
of Sunrun Inc. v. Gila County TX 2015-000450.

Background Information
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has not received a Complaint and Notice of
Appeal of Property Valuation and Summons from an attorney representing Sunrun
Inc., but one has been filed according to the Maricopa County Superior Court webpage.

The Attorney General's Office has offered to represent Gila County along with the other
counties named in this lawsuit. 

The Board of Supervisors will need to direct its counsel regarding whether or how to
defend against the action and if the Board chooses to allow the Attorney General's
Office to represent Gila County.

Evaluation
The Board may vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3)
to receive legal advice on this item and pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) to instruct
its attorney regarding whether or how to defend against the action and if the Board 
chooses to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County.

Conclusion
The Board should direct its attorney as to whether or not this case should be turned
over to the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County. 

Recommendation
The Board should direct its attorney as to whether or not this case should be turned
over to the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County.

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S.
§  38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) regarding a request to allow the Attorney
General's Office to represent Gila County for Sunrun Inc. v. Gila County, TX
2015-000450.  After the Regular Meeting has been reconvened, move to direct the
County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in the executive session regarding this
agenda item.  (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   

ARF-3570     Executive Session Item      7. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  

Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead, County Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2014-2015 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County in this matter
of Solarcity Corporation v. Gila County TX 2015-000240

Background Information
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has not received a Complaint and Notice of
Appeal of Property Valuation and Summons from an attorney representing Solarcity
Corporation, but one has been filed according to the Maricopa County Superior Court
webpage.

The Attorney General's Office has offered to represent Gila County along with the other
counties named in this lawsuit. 

The Board of Supervisors will need to direct its counsel regarding whether or how to
defend against the action and if the Board chooses to allow the Attorney General's
Office to represent Gila County.

Evaluation
The Board may vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3)
to receive legal advice on this item and pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) to instruct
its attorney regarding whether or how to defend against the action and if the Board
chooses to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County. 

Conclusion
The Board should direct its attorney as to whether or not this case should be turned
over to the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County.

Recommendation
The Board should direct its attorney as to whether or not this case should be turned
over to the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County.

Suggested Motion



Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S.
§  38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) regarding a request to allow the Attorney
General's Office to represent Gila County for Solarcity Corporation v. Gila County, TX
2015-000240.  After the Regular Meeting has been reconvened, move to direct the
County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in the executive session regarding this
agenda item.  (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   

ARF-3591     Executive Session Item      7. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/02/2016  

Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead, County Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

January
2012-January
2013

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Proposed Settlement Agreement for Carson Construction Inc. v. Gila County, CV
201500006, regarding the Pine Creek Canyon Road Construction Project.

Background Information
Carson Construction Inc. received the contract to complete the Pine Creek Canyon
Road Construction Project in 2012.  Carson claims that it was delayed in the project
because of issues involving utility easements which caused it to idle equipment and
incur financial losses in the amount of $155,019. 

On November 18, 2014, the Board of Supervisors met in executive session regarding a
Notice of Claim filed upon the County by Carson Construction Inc.  After reconvening
into the Board of Supervisors' Regular Meeting, the Board voted to continue to discuss
this issue at the December 2, 2014, Regular Meeting, and at that time it would
consider voting to go into executive session.

On December 2, 2014, the Board met again in executive session regarding this issue
and after reconvening the Regular Meeting, the Board directed the County Attorney's
Office to proceed as directed in the executive session.

On March 3, 2015, the Board met again in executive session regarding this issue and
after reconvening the Regular Meeting, the Board directed the County Attorney's Office
to proceed as directed in the executive session.

On January 5, 2016, the Board met again in executive session regarding this issue and
after reconvening the Regular Meeting, the Board directed the County Attorney's Office
to proceed as directed in the executive session.

Evaluation
Gila County needs to formally approve a Settlement Agreement. 



Conclusion
Because Gila County has received this claim and have agreed to a settlement, the
Board of Supervisors should formally approve the Settlement Agreement.

Recommendation
The Board of Supervisors should go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) in order to receive legal advice from its attorney
regarding this item and to discuss or consult with the attorney of the public body in
order to consider its position and instruct its attorney regarding the public body's
position in order to settle this case. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S.
§  38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) regarding a proposed Settlement Agreement for
Carson Construction Inc. v. Gila County, CV 201500006, regarding the Pine Creek
Canyon Road Construction Project.  After the Regular Meeting has been reconvened,
move to direct the County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in the executive
session regarding this agenda item.  (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments


	Agenda
	2015 Gila County Employee Service Awards Presentation
	Att1_2015 Gila County Service Awards
	Appoint Two Members to the Gila County Personnel Commission
	Att1_GC Personnel Commission as of 2-2-16
	Att2_Policy No. BOS-HRS-625 Personnel Commission
	Att3_ARS _11-353
	Intergovernmental Agreement with the Arizona Department of Economic Security for Title IV-D child support services in Gila County
	Att1_IGA Child Support
	Att2_Approval as to Form
	Att3_Comment
	2016 - 2017 Reappointment of Gary V. Scales as Superior Court Judge Pro Tempore
	Att1_BoS Approval
	Att2_Memo to BoS 
	East Verde Park Fire District Board Appointment
	Att1_Oath of Office for Maggie Mean-Evans
	Att2_9-23-15 Meeting Minutes
	Att3_9-23-2015 Meeting Agenda
	Att4_James Hinton's Resignation Letter
	Att5_Arizona Revised Statute 48-803
	Appointment of Precinct Committeemen to the Gila County Republican Party
	Att1_Peggy Porter Appointment
	Att2_Jane Evans Appointment
	Att3_A.R.S. 16-821
	Amendment No. 6 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813-Medical Examiner Services for Gila County
	Att1_Approval as to Form
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Att2_Amendment No. 6 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att3_Amendment No. 5 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062831
	Att4_Amendment No. 4 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att5_Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att6_Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att7_Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement No. 062813
	Att8_Professional Services Agreement No. 062831-Medical Examiner Services with Dr. Fischione
	November 2015
	Att1_Recorder's November 2015 Monthly Report
	December 2015
	Att1_Clerk's December 2015 monthly report
	January 5, 2016 and January 19, 2016
	Att1_01-19-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
	Att2_01-05-16 BOS Meeting Minutes
	01_05_16, 01_12_16, 01_19_16, and 01_26_16
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_01_05_16 Human Resources Report
	Att3_01_12_16 Human Resources Report
	Att4_01_19_16 Human Resources Report
	Att5_01_26_16 Human Resources Report
	December 18, 2015_ December 25, 2015_ and January 01, 2016
	Att1_Report for County Manager approved contracts for Weeks Ending 12-18-15, 12-25-15 and 01-01-16
	Att2_Contract Agreement for installation to floor upgrade
	Att3_Service Agreement No. 121415-Mountain Retreat Builders
	Att4_Service Agreement No. 121215-Mountain Retreat Builders
	Att5_Service Agreement No. 121215-7-Mountain Retreat Builders
	Att6ization to Utilize State Contract-1309 S. South Street
	Att7ization to utilize State Contract-5709 S. Russell Road
	Att8_Service Agreement No. 120915-DSI Recycling Systems, Inc.
	Att9_Government Obligation Contract-3349111
	Att10_Service Agreement No. 121215-8-Noble Building
	Att11_Service Agreement No. 121215-4-Noble Building
	Att12_Service Agreement No. 121215-5-Noble Building
	Att13_Service Agreement No. 121215-6-Noble Building
	Att14_Service Agreement No. 120215-1-Rodriguez Constructions
	Att15_Modification No. 003-Federal Highway Administration
	Att16_Service Agreement No. 120215-Earthquest Plumbing
	Att17_Support and Maintenance Agreement 38781CONSVR-HOV Services
	January 4-10, 2016_ January 11-17, 2016_ and January 18-24, 2016
	Att1_January 18-24, 2016
	Att2_January 11-17, 2016
	Att3_January 04-10, 2016
	Continental Energy, LLC v. Gila County, TX2015-000969 Request for Waiver of Service and Request to allow Attorney Generals Office to represent Gila Co
	Continental Energy, LLC v. Gila County, TX2015-000950 Request for Waiver of Service and Request to allow Attorney Generals Office to represent Gila Co
	Request to allow Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County in Constellation Solar v. Gila County TX 2015-000112
	Request to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County in this matter of Sunrun Inc. v. Gila County TX 2015-000450
	Request to allow the Attorney General's Office to represent Gila County in this matter of Solarcity Corporation v. Gila County TX 2015-000240
	Proposed Settlement Agreement for Carson Construction Inc. v. Gila County, CV 201500006 regarding the Pine Creek Canyon Road Constructi

